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1 was born the 11th of June 1898 on the Gaines Basin Hoad in

the little old house on the north farm, My father was born in

the same house and it's been in the Lattin family since the 1860s.
Prior to that it was in the Anderson family who was my ancestors
back as far as 1819. Bill Lattin lives in the little old house at
the present time. (BEill Lattin, son). My father's name was Nahum
Anderson Lattin, born in 1865. My mother's name was Sophia Eliza-
beth Harling, born in 1872. I was the only child.

30 you reglly grew up right here?

On these two farms! My father and mother went to housekeeping in

the little old house, where BEill lives, in 189lL. They were married
in January and my mother told me that when they clap-boarded that
house in Januery, it was warm and balmy and the flies was crawling
out of the grass! It was so warm and balmy in 189L. They lived

there from 1894 until 1901. After my grandfather died, they came

up here and took over the stone house. So all my life I've lived

on this farm, in this cobblestone house we're in today.

Do you remember when you first went to school?

I went to Gaines Basin school, up the road. It's about half a mile
up to the old cobblestone schoolhouse. The first teacher I had was
May Morrissey. I went there probably 2-3 weeks; the tail-end of
1904. I stuck my tongue out at her one day in school, and she sent

& boy out to get a switch and he come in with a switch as big as a
broom handle! I was scared when I saw that god-damned club! (laughS).
Did she whip you with it?

No, she didn't. She set it up in the window, but I learned my leason
fast!

Was that a one-room schoolhouse up to grade eight?

Yes and only one teacher, I went there for five grades. After 1 got
into the 6th grade I went to Albion Central School. I walked to
school.

You walked to school from here?l

Walked from here to school. In the winter time, if somebody else was
going to school, I'd ride with them. But in the summer time I walked
or rode a bicycle. Lots of times I'd walk cross-lots '"cause it WA S

a lot shorter.

Did you always take your own lunch?

Oh sure! In the winter time I carried my lunch to school. In the
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summer time I'd jog home at noon to get my lunch to home. I was one
of the first ones that took milk to school. I like milk| I drank
more milk than anybody alive in Orleans County!

How did you keep it cold?

My mother put it in a mayonnaise jar. I carried this pint of milk
to Gaines Basin sachool. I like milk! The other kids ridiculed me;
laughed, called me "calf" and all that kind of stuff. I liked the
milk and I enjoyed it! They would have too, but they didn't want

to be kidded about it, you know. That was over 70 years ago. It
was a little mayonnaise jar called Gauntlet ., It had a screw top
and wouldn't lesk out and get away from you., A screw-top bottle was
unheard of in those days.

You still have your own teeth, so I guess the milk must have done
you some good. (laughs). Then you went to the Albion school?

In the sixth grade in 1910, and I finished high school., The boys
and girls that was in the 6th grade continued right on thru 6,7,8
and into high school and graduated together. There was L-5 of us
that was in the 6th grade and graduated in 1917.

What did you do directly after high school? Did you go on to school?
I intended to go to Mechanic'as Institute. I wanted to be a drafts-
man. I went down there to see about getting registered; that was
in Rochester and was the fore-runner of R,I.T. When I came back,
the hired man had gone and Dad wasn't too healthy and my Ma said,
"Why don't you stay and help Dad on the farm here and go to school
next year?" So, I've been here ever since.

What kind of farming did your father do?

Diviserfied farming.

Mostly fruits.

Not too much fruit, We had some fruit but not too much. There was
fruit to the north farm, We raised cattle and bulls and bucks and
boars and heifers and diversified farming. We had chickens and geese
and ducks and we had a hen house and sold eggs to trade in Albion.
We was almost self-sufficient. When the Depression was on we were
neither cold nor hungry because we produced the things on the farm
to eat.

Your chicken farm would be some different today, yes?!

Oh gracious! We'd raise 250 chickens every year and put in about a
hundred pullets.
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How did you get your pullets?

We bought the baby chicks when they were day old for 15 or 20 cents
apiece, They varied in price. We'd buy these day-old chicks and
raise them in the brooder house. We used to use the coal stove
brooder 'til we got to electric motors. We'd get 90 or 100 good
pullets and put those in the hen house. My father and mother and
Avis and I would get our groceries out of that flock of hens! The
hens produced our groceries and we produced the grain on the farm
to feed the chickens. We had to get suppliment at the mill, like
bone meal and cod-liver-oil end meat scraps in mash for the chickens.
Tell me about the mill.

The grist mill, where they would grind your grain. I used to go to
Blodgetts in Albion. Then after Blodgetts got out of the business

I went to GLF in Knowlesville; then I went to the GLF in Albion.
Those farmer's mills are all gone. I guess they still grind at the
GLF in Knowlesville., You can take grist there and get it ground.
Years ago everybody had a flock of hens and now the farmers have

no hens! All the eggs that are raised in Orleans County are either
Bowman's or Robert's. Eowmans got a big chicken ranch over here
west of us, on the other road, and there's 40,000 layers in one
building! Justin Roberts, I guess, has got 30-40,000 layers in a
building up in Shelbyl

When did you meet your wife (Avis Wilson)?

Well, the first time that I saw her, she was three years 0ld and

1 guess I was a lot older. I was a big boy. That was the first

that I remember. (laughs). We were married the 17th of October 1932
and we had an old Chevrolet automobile; a coupe. We were married at
nine o'elock in the morning at Christ Church rectory in Albion.
They didn't anybody know that we were going to get married. We
didn't make any whoop-de=-do about it. We didn't have a wedding or
anything fancy. We went and bought our license at the town clerk's
office and in ten minutes we were down at the rectory. We were
married and out of town about 20 minutes later! That morning the
announcements went into the Post Office, just as soon as we wWere
married, and they were delivered in the morning mail. FPeople called
my mother and father; "Is it a joke?"

Did your folks know about 1t?

Oh they knew it, and Avis' folks knew but they didn't anybody else!
And people called, that got these notices. They called up and



e A . e

Me

Me

Me

Me

Lattin L

wanted to know if it was a jokel! Marcus Phillips was one of theml
(laughs). I'd been to too many weddings and I didn't think I wanted
to have all that gang at my wedding! We went to New England. We

had & ball! We went as far east as Portland, Maine; out to Cape Cod
and we stopped and saw some friends in Poughkeepsie on our way home.
When we got back, we tried to find a place to live. We lived in an
apartment in Albion that winter of 1932 and '33. About two weeks
after we got home, we decided that we'd build a house, I had cut
the lumber eight years previous. That was in the hemlock wocds
north=west of Kuckville.

Was this land that you owned?

No, my father made a deal with Lou Kenyon who owned the woods., We
bought the trees on the stump, and we had to cut these trees and
draw them from Kuckville to the Ridge Road where there was a port-
able sawmill; where Fay Hollenbeck's barn is. They sawed the lumber
there. There was 5l logs that we cut out of the woods and it made
over 7,000 feet of lumber. It was piled up here, west of the barn,
from 1925 until 1932. It was well seasoned. It was the nicest lot
of hemlock lumber you ever saw. That made the house. The house is
22 by 28 and it's cozy, compact, a little cape-cod cottage.

That is what you call "the little house?"

That is_the little house.

You told me (earlier) that you didn't think it cost very much?

Well it cost plenty then with blood, sweat and tears because I dug
the cellar, with the help of one man, in a week and a day. Dug it
with a pick and shovel and a slip-scraper, and a team of horses.

A slip=-scraper?

A slip-scraper: two horses draw this scraper that gouges in the
dirt, pulls the dirt out at you; loosens up with the plow. It took
us a week and a day to dig the cellar, Then we built the forms

and poured the cement, It cost $12.50 to pour the cement wall for

that house., That's how hard times were! There was 28 load of gravel
in that basement and I drawed it all from Pickett's gravel pit, on
a Model-T truck and pitched every bit of it on with a shovel, I
shoveled it off by hand. It was a lot of hard work! We had 12 or 1l
load of stone off of the farm to go on the aggrdgiate in the base-
ment wall. That was stone to help fill up the wall,., Carpenters

were 50¢ an hour and I had three carpenters 'til we got the frame

up and the windows in and the roof on and I had no funds. I had
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no funds. I had paid them a little over $100.00 and I had paid
them in barter and trade, a lot of it. Paid for the sand with
beef. Then one of Avis! uncles who was pretty good as & carpenter,
said he would help me finish it up on the inside. So he helped

me get the lath and the plaster and the floors laid. Itt's all
home-grown. All the wood in there is gll local grown woodl We
moved in there the 19th of April 1933. See, it was the day of

Faul Revere's ride.. the 19th of April, and we had the house
plastered just downstairs, We didn't have the money to buy the
lath and plaster for upstairs. All the time we was building that
house I never owed anybody over $100.00 at any one time. We got
that much credit, then we quit and paid them back as fast as we
could. All the latches in there are old antique hand-made latches,
made by a blacksmith. Some nice ones there tool

Did you have them made?

No, they were old ones that I found here and there. 0ld Een Howes,
Doctor Howes, he gave me the latch on the kitchen door; probably

a foot high. A great big wrought iron latch.

When you were married, was Avis working?

She was working in the office of the Newell Shirt Company in Medina.
Then she got a job with the Home Bureau; now they call it the
Extengion. She worked for six or seven years after we were mar-
ried. (At this point Avis was making silent gestures attempting

to correct a mis-statement by Cary). Okay, she worked ten years
and ten months! (laughter),

wWhen was your son born?

Eill was born the 10th of October 194li. We were married 12 years
before Bill got here. Working on a farm and working in an office
is a poor time to try to raise kids. Why bring kids into the world
if you can't clothe them and feed them? I was L7 years old when
Bill was born. His name is Cary Wilson Lattin but he is known as
Bill. Bill is married to Heather Sinclair Boyd end they have two
daughters,

Cary, will you tell a bit about the Lattin bridge and homestead?
When the canal went across the state of N.Y. and they cut a farmer's
land in two, he didn't want his farm divided. The state said, "We
will build you a bridge so you can get across to your land".which
they did. They was a lot of little farm bridges all across the

state. The farmer could buy land on the side where his home wasg
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and maybe sell the land to some other farmer; so they got rid of
their bridge., The bridges gradually got eliminated. bEefore the
Lettins bought the farm, it was owned by the Eaileys and they had

a farm bridge, When Lattins bought the territory they still had

the bridge to get across the canal, When the Barge Canal had taken
over the Erie Canal and was in the process in 1910-11-12 and 13,
making the canal wider and deeper, they was getting rid of all

these farm bridges if they could possibly do it. The state would

buy the rights from the bridge and eliminate the bridge and then

you could go up and down the tow path or another road. West of

Zagle Harbor the Starkweathers had a similiar situation. They sold
their rights bavk to the state and so they lost their bridge. The
state said they could go down the south bank of the canal to the
Hagle Harbor Road or the Allen Bridge Road. Well, nobody took care
of the road so you was selling your birthright for a mess of pot=-
tage. When Jack Robinson owned the farm and had 35 or O horses there
and wanted to get food to them in the spring of the year when the
roads wasg bad, he appropriated some gravel off the town dump. He got
combed over pretty good for appropriating gravel. Of course he made
it good; but he was in a jam! The Lattins would not relinquish their
right to the Lattin's bridge and they still have it. It is the only
bridge in the astate of N.Y. on the Barge Canal syatem that serves
just one family farm. It used to serve the pumping station. The
pumping station was the firast water works in Albion and that took
place in the 1880s. There are a lot of springs on the Lattin farm
running north-west up thru the Lone Star Inn and then off south by
Charlie Howards. It's all springy up thru there. They had these
beautiful springs for the water works in Albion and when Uncle Holm
sold their rights to these friends, he reserved the right that he
should have all the domestic water forever from the Albion waterworks
So they had sll the water they wanted there on that farm tacked right
into their house and for the cows and anything they wanted to uase

it for. When the new pumping station that went to the lake and they
abondoned this station over here, the Lattins could still get free
water from the village of Albion because that's the way it was writte:
up pretty near 100 years ago. When my great-grandfather (Joseph A,
Lattin) lived on that farm, he was & very progressive farmer. He was
quite a "wheel" around Albion. He had fences arranged. They was 2-3

spring brooks on his farm, so he had running water in all hisg fields
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for all of his cattle. He had a brook in each field. Maybe his lots
weren't perfectly square or oblong or rectangle but he had them
arranged so that he had running water in each field. He also plantec
all the Maple trees on East Avenue in Albion, from the stop-light
clear down to the High School. Of course many trees have been taken
down. My cousin, old Harry Lattin told me that when I went to Cora
Lattin'a funeral in 1932.

When did you move into this beautiful cobblestone house that you
and Avis call "home" 7

Well I've been here ever since I was two years old. My father died
in "47 and my mother died in '50. After she died I turned the key
and walked out. It was vacant all that summer. She died in May.
Some friends were out here from Long Island and they got to Avis,
or she got to them before I got to see them., I was back on the farm
the day they arrived and so they started putting the pressure on
me tp come over here and overhsul this house. One was Alan Burrett,
a landscape architect, He was a connoisseur extraordinary of antiques
He was raised in the cobblesatone house where Tom Hurd now lives, He
was one of my best friends. He pursuaded us to come over here and
overhaul this cobblestone house. You see, it hadn't been wired or
been plumb. There was a hot-air furnace heating plant in here so

we had a lot to do. It cost probably three times as much to over=-
haul this house in 1950 and '51 as it did the "little house" in
1932 because prices of things had gone up so. It would cost a bit
more today! It is a nice little home and I'm pretty proud of it
because Avis is a damned good house-keeper and home-maker. It's
care that does things. Housekeeping is a full time job. You don't
realize it as much 'til you get older. I work down in the shop,
downstairs, and I'm working down there and 2-3 days out of the week
you can hear the vacuum cleaner going up here. A lot of folks think
if they clean with a vacuum cleaner once a week they've done s
pretty good job, or every two weeka!, But you can hear the vacuum
¢leaner going up here a lot of the time when I didn't think it was
that dirty.

When you say that you are working downstairs in the shop, what do
you mean?

I've got a little carpenter's bench and a power saw down there and
a few hand toola. 1 like to whittle and make things, like little
tables and chests of drawers like that one over there (points).
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Itts fun to do and it also makes your fingers shorter. You can't
pick up so many nails! (laughs as he holds up two fingers that have
been "shortened").

You had your accident during the blizzard didn't you?

The morning of the blizzard! Had a hell of a time getting to the
hospital. (laughs).

Carpentry has been one of your hobbies, right?

That's right., I can saw a board off square.

When you made the "little house", did you saw the wood?

I cut it in the woods. I had a boy help me. His name was Dick Birds-
man and he and I cut those 5L logs in two days. We just sawed the
logs off. We didn't clean up the tops or the brush or anything else.
My father went down to the lske with a team of horses and a draw-
boy and drew the logs out of the woods to the side of the road where
Dave Coon's house and barn stands, on the side of the Lakeshore
Road. It took him almost a week to draw those logs out of the woods,
a log or two at a time. Then in March we drew those logs from Kuck-
ville to the Ridge where Fay Hollenbeck's house and barn stands.
There was a saw-mill going to be in there that spring. The roads
were all dirt at the time. They was a pretty good road from Kuck=-
ville to Waterport, but from Waterport to the Ridge was a mud road
and it was quite hard pulling for the horses to draw those logs,

We usually put three logs on the wagon. We drawed with two teams
and two rigs. We'd leave here at 8 o'clock in the morning and get
to Kuckville and get our logs loaded and have a lunch, some tea

and & sandwich, and start ofr the Ridge Road a little after one.
It'd be L=5 o'clock afore we got home at night. That was quite a
jaunt to get all that lumber. There was 7,000 feet of lumber when
we got it home. We had to draw it home from the saw-mill, but that
waa in June and the rcads wasn't so bad then.

You've always been a farmer? What did you have: crops, animals or?
We had beef cattle and we raised cabbage for a cash crop and we
raised tomatoes. When we started raising tomatoes here in 1924-35
(we hadn't got into tomatoes much before '2,-'25) they was four or
five canning factories in Orleans County. There was a canning fact-
ory in Medina. Heinz had & big plant there. They was three canning
factories in Albion, one in Holley, one at Morton and One in Barre
Center. You could drive around the country 25-30 years ago and in
the summer there'd be more tomatoes than anything else., Now there
ign't a canning factory within 80-90 miles of here. Farmer would
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raise tomatoes and they'd draw them clear over to west of Buffalo
at Irving, or someplace west of Buffalo,

wWhy did the canning factories move?

I don't know. Whether the Unions didn't do the canning industry
any good,in Albion when the Union went on stiike at Birds-eye-
Snyder in Albioa in 1947 or '48. The canning factory told them,
"Boys you'd better not strikel" But they was going to strike, and
they did and that was, I think, one of the reasons that Birdseye
got out of Albion. I really dol(transcript of Ed Devlin: see).
Wouldn't the Unions have followed them thru the states?

Well probably they would. They've got more sunlight in Californis.
The tomato business has gone that way.

You had help in picking the tomatoes?

Yes. I usually hired boys in the neighborhood that wanted to work
and we used to get women from Albion. The Polish women in Albion
was good tomato pickers. Mary Judwick has picked tomatoes here,
end her mother and Stanley (Judwick) mother., They was darn nicel
Did you go to Albion to get the pickers?

I had to go and get them and they'd work all day for about $4.00 a
day. My mother fed them real well at noon. Always. Then after that
generation died off, then we had to depend on other pickers., There
was a girl in Buffalo that worked in the Trico¥ (factory) and she
liked to get out on the farm in the fall and she'd come down and
pick tomatoes for 2-3 weeks.

After they picked tomatoes, did they put them in bsaskets?

They picked them in hampers that held about 50 pounds, about 35 1bs,
a hamper, Helen. You paid them so much a hamper. When we first
started picking they paid about 2% or 3 cents a hemper and the price
kept going up and going up, It got so it was 25¢ or 30¢ to pick a
hamper of tomatoes! A good picker could pick 100 hampers in a day
and some could pick more than that, I heard one the other day:

some fellows had been picking apples for some of the Poelmals

and he was making $100.00 a day plcking apples and he broke his
finger. He went to the "powers that be" and he wanted food stamps!
Haking $100.00 a day! That is just how the times have changed from
what they used to be.

Did you ever grow fruit on this farm?

We had some fruit but I never enjoyed raising it. I don't know why.
I like cattle, and we raised cash on crops such as cabbage and tom-
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atoes., When wheat got to a dollar a bushel, we fed it up on the
farm. We fed it to our cattle instead of selling it for a dollar a
bushel. That's pretty cheap for wheat! One summer in '32 or '33,
oats was 33¢ a bushel. That's pretty cheap tool

Cary, we were talking asbout the So0il Eank Program that Freasident
Eisenhower began. Would ypu tell me how and why you got into that?
well, I heard about the So0il Bank and Horace Eird was the conser=-
vation man here in the county at the time. That was in '58 or '59

I think. OQur barn burned up in 1957, the 6th of September.

What happened to your barn?

It was struck by light-ning! I had put the last load of osts in the
barn that morning. They!'d been combined the day before and Eill had
helped me shovel them into the granary. It was the last grain we'd
raised that summer. That was in September, when the oats was com-
bined. I said,"I'm going to the mill to get some chicken feed. Do
you want to go with me?" He says,"No, I'm going to go back in the
orchard and play in the tree-=house." He and Jack Miles had a tree-
house back in the orchard. So I went to the mill and while I was
down to the mill, we had an awful light-ning storm. It was reslly
sharp! The girl in the mill come out where the men were and stood
right up close to us. She was scared! I said,"There's no use being
afraid of it. You never know where it's going to hit. In fact my
father was knocked down three times when he was a young manl!|" When
I started for home, everybody was going by me and when I got to the
canal bridge, I see why. My barn was all on fire!l|Light-ning had
struck the barn and when it struck it was just like an atomic bomb.
It just exploded and the barn was on fire almost instantanecus!
Jack Miles'! brother was looking out the window and he saw it and
says that the fire was coming out of the barn windows just like
that! You know, with all that dry hay and atraw in there. We lost
all the grain and practically all the hay and straw that we'd raised
that summer thaet was in the barn. Well, I had about 20 head of
young cattle and there was no place to put them and my other cattle,.
My father had an empty barn, so I took my cettle up there that
winter., I had lost two calves in the barn but the cattle were sll
out in the field. So, I was getting tired. 1 was getting to be
pretty near sixty years old; 58, I guess I was at the time, and 1
was commencing to get tired. I heard about the Soil bank Program

and I went to see asbout it, They said that they (the government)
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would pay so much an acre, That's a national program. I went to
sse Horsce Bird and he said,"They'll pay so much an acre for 80
many acres and if you put the whole thing in, they'll give you

ten percent more." So we came home and had a conference with Avis,
whether to get in for five years or ten. I said,"Let's try it for
five." I saw Manley Morrison who was a Supervisor and had gone into
the Soil Bank FProgram. He was a good friend of mine. He says,"You
are crazy if you don't get in for ten." He says,"You won't ever
want to go back into farming at your age!" Bill (our son) says,

"I don't want any part of farming!" He was then about 12 years old.
So, we signed up for ten years. The government paid $18. or $19. an
gere for the land that was arable. They didn't pay anything for the
orchard or the woods or all the other land. Where you could crop,
they'd pay so much an acre. They paid us not to grow crops. We had
to mow it so the land didn't get foul, didn't grow up to brush. If
you stop mowing the land, or stop working it, nature takes over
pretty fast. Here's this little acre out here (points); there's
trees out there that big (demonstrates) that haan't been mowed.
Walnut trees grew up there, and I thought,"Well, that's nice to
have walnut trees. Let 'em grow." But I should have cut them down.
Nature takes over pretty fast. It grows back to jungle.

Did the government send people around to check the land?

They'd come and check it over and see if you were doing your part
of the agreement. The first two years you had to mow it all. Then
they decided to mow half of it, in strips: mow a strip, an acre
that long then skip a strip. Then they got to mowing it on thirds.
Well, if you didn't mark where you'd mowed the year before, you'd
get fouled up. ... In two or three years some of our stuff got so

I was cutting Elm trees off mas big as my thumb. That was about all
the mowing machine would take, and it was hard to do. Then they
went out of the Soil Bank.(See S0il Bank, conservation reserve).
Were there quite a few farmers around here that went into the 5o0il
Bank Program?

They was quite a few that went into it. When I went into the 5Soil
Bank, I put the whole farm in. We sold all of our cattle, sold all
of our livestock, s0ld our sheep, sold our horses and we toock down
all the fences. The north farm and this farm are two great big fields
I rented it to one of the neighbors for a couple of years and then
he didn't want it any more. So for the last four years 1 rented it
te the Bowmsn Farmsa, They are good farmers, We own the land.
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The Bowmans run the works and they pay me in the fall of the year,
and that's the way I like it. They're good farmers and they've plowed
up land that I've never seen because they plow so much deeper with
these big tractors. They plow & or 10 furrows across the field!
When you began farming you probably used all "animal power" 7

We had two horses and a plow. Sometimes we'd put three horses on a
plow if it was hard plowing. I walked behind the plow.

Did you go into mechanized farming?

The first tractor I got was a second-hand Fordson tractor, and a
disc and a drag for $300.00 I used that probably 3-4 years. The
Fordson tractor wasn't too much of a power plant. We lost a couple
of horses, and we had to have a team of horses, so father and I got
another big team and we used horses all we could to save burning up
gasoline or kerosene. I didn't get my first International rubber-
tired tractor until 1944 . I bought a Farm-all, = Macormick-Derring
International. It was a little tractor and it would draw one plow
and an eight foot disc and an B8 foot cultipacker; not all at once
but at separate times, There was an awful lot of work in that trac-
tor. It cost about $800.00 when I got it in 'Ly, I used it 12 years
and I traded it in for more than I paid for it. That's how it had
depreciated! Then we got a bigger one. I @idn't farm it only two
more years after 1 got the bigger tractor because then I went into
the Soil Bank Program. I was always glad I did because I was getting
tired. Bill wasn't interested in farming, and the way help is, what
the heck would you do? The book-keeping and the restrictions that you
gotta go thru nowl I should think that the first thing a farmer
wants to do to get into the farming business, is to get a good
book-keeper the first thing. How is a Young guy going to get into
farming today? You got $100,000,00 worth of equipment afore you

got any land, The price of this land business! Orleans County has
always been low, around the state. Down in Yates County, the land
down there $1,200. to $1,400, an acre. And then go out west and
what 1s it? Why it's $2,000,-$3,000,an acre for some of the land in
Kansas! It hasn't been that high around here. I hate to see it go
up because if it goes up, you're going to pay more taxes. I was
always a small farmer. They say,"Why don't you raise 25 or 30 acres
of tomatoes and get the blacks to pick 'em, and do all this?" We
kept within our bounds. Avis picked tomatoes and we operated smsall,
I'¥m still living here and a lot of these other guys aren't, 1 know
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when I started building the "little house" and 1 was talking to my
mother about building. "I don't know whether I ought to build it
any bigger or not." She said,"You know, I'd rather be living on the
inside of a little house than on the outside of a big house." 1
sometimes wish we had built the "little house" over there, two feet
wider and two feet longer because that two feet would have made
quite a bit of difference. On the other hand, if I'd gone two feet
longer 1'd had to have more windows on the front or it would have
looked cock-eyed! The same the other way. So, it's a cozy snug little
house. I think Avis would like to go back there today,

Cary, you became the Orleans County Historian in February of 1958,
Would you tell a bit about that, how you got the job and a bit about
your experiences?

Well, Joe Achilles (former County Historian) died in December of
1957. Milton Cass and Scott Clark were two good friends of mine

and they got to talking about Joe dying and they said,"why gees,
Cary's a natural at that, Let's see what we can do." So, when I
come out of church one day, there was a note on my steering whesl.
"Come down to the house. I want to see you." So I went down and
Scotty says,"You know Joe died. Why don't you get that job?" "Why",
I said, "I haven't got a Chineman's chance to get it","Well", he
says,"let's try. We'll talk to the Supervisors!", So they started
prodding me and prodding me and I went to see Les Canham, who had
Just been elected Supervisor and also the Chairman of the Board.He
was the fellow from Kendall, and a couple of other friends on the
Board. I started pulling all the wires I could pull. They advertised
and they had interviews. It was noised around that Joe Achilles!
job was going to be filled. They was about ten that applied for the
job., 1 was shaking in my boots. I went to see the Supervisors and
they talked alright. Canham was "in my corner", and so was Mike
Paduchak. I know I went to see Bill Knights. I had never talked
with him before and he said,"I got nothing against you but I'm not
going to promise I'm going to vote for you." He says,"Maybe next
week some of my relatives might want to get the job. I'd be in bad
shape!" I kinda admired him for saying it that way. See, he made no
commitments. When they voted as to who they was going to hire, we
had to go to have an interview. I got it by a vote of 6 to L then
they made it unanimous. That was the sgreement.
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Where was your office as County Historian, Cary?
Down in the basement of the Court House, where the Election Office
is; where Helen Zelanmy and Helen Piazza are, only it was on the
north part of that office.
You nheld that job for how many yeara?
I resigned the 318t of December in '75 and 1 said 1 would stay on
until they got somebody else. (17 years in office). I stayed there
'til the 13t of April until Mac (Arden McAllister) took over, When
I was appointed County Historian there was a person come down in
there une day; flounced around and said,"I don't know how you got
this job of County Historian. There's others that are a lot better
qualified than you are to have it!" I didn't get mad or say any
four-letter words, but I was so damned mad when I come home., 1 got
home and Avis wasn't here, 1 had taken her somewhere and I'd for-
got where the hell I'd left her! (laughter). I was so god-damned
mad]! We always laughed about that!
You did a wonderful job as the County Historian and you've become
renowned for being a wonderful speaker. You can tell the best
stories, and with a twinkle in your eye, and lots of flavorable
gspices thrown inl
It was quite a rewarding experience because I met a lot of fine
people all the way from Rouses Point (Lake Champlein) all the
way to Montauk Point (Long Island), from the Niagara frontier to
the southerntier. I have said many times that I would rather have
g million friends than I would a million bucks. Some folks would
say "I'1]1 take the million dollars™, but if you look at it from a
mercenary standpoint, each one's worth a two-dollar touch.
before we leave the area of the Court House, I'd 1like to ask you
to say something about the beautiful weather vane, the flsur-de=lis.
You were really the force behind having that made and put up there.
Originally there was a big arrow-weather-vane on the Court Houss.
Fart of that is up in the Court House dome. It was up there during
the Centennial; it was pretty well broken apart. When they put the
lightening rods on the Court House, Wally Forder come in there one
day and he said,"You know they're putting lightening rods on the
Court House next week. You always talked about a weather vane. gl
Let's put it up!" I says,"Wally, you can't put a weather vane up
in a minute, it takes time. What are we going to do, what design
are we going to have, what are we going to make it out of, whers
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are ypu going to get it made?" So it was dropped and a month or
two after that I said,"well, 1've been working on that weather-
vane," He says,"Why, who's going to look up there and see it?

I don't think anybody." I said,"It's a begutiful thing, a weather-
vane on & building. All over the eastern part of the United States
they are on all the nice old buildings." "Ah", he says,"I don't
think so". He was cool so I didn't say anything about it. After
Jerim Clapper came to Albion, he was in here one day and I said,
"Gees, I'd 1like to see a weather vane go up on the Court House
some time and I think I could get enough of my friends that we
could buy the metal and make it and put it up so it's no cost to
the county. We will make it. The only thing they've got to do is
install it." So Clapper, he went right up to the Board of Super-
visors and he says,"Lattin wants a weather vene. Let's get this
thing a-going." And by gees, they passed this weather vane reso-
lution! It's in the Supervisory book; you'!ll see it: that I be
allowed to build a suitable and appropriate weather vane for the
county. No expense to the county except to install it.

The Supervisors hadn't even seen the design for the weather vane?
We didn't have any design. Well, Orleans is fleur-de-lis. When
they built the jail, they had a design over there. George Eachel-
lor was chairman and he come down and he says,"What kind of a
design are we going to have on this plaque on the jail?" I said,
"By all means get a weather vane fleur-de-lis, Orleans." He went
along. You notice there is a fleur-de-lis on the east side of the
jail where the entrance is, and a sheaf of wheat, and other things,
a plow maybe. This is a design for a county seal. I says "Get a
weather vanel We got to have a weather vanel" So they gave me per-
mission to build a weather vane and that was ten years ago. I
started talking about this: what kind of metal, snd how are you
going to get anodized or gold leaf or what, and did a lot of
thinking. I talked to some of these engineers. "What kind of
thrust bearing are you going to have; what kind of race bearing
are you going to have up around the top", and all those kind of
things.

What is a race bearing?

A bearing up at the top where it swings sround,.,.. the thrust
bearing so that all the weight goes on one ball bearing. I talked
to "Bing" about it and he was for it.

wWho is "Bing" ?
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Burnell Eingerman, and Dave Stevanson are the two janitors(for the
Court House work). Bing was all for it. About 3=}, yesrs sago he
says,"You know they're going to start doing some work on the dome.
We'd better start thinking about it." So we went to Hochester one
day and bought some metal. It was there in Bing's office for quite
awhile; then two years sgo he said "This fsll we're going to over-
haul the top there and we'd better have it made." So we got right
at it, and Heather (wife of Bill Lattin) designed the fleur-de-lis.
Yes, she's my daughter-in-law. Heather designed it and Eing cut it
ocout with 8 saber saw, It'a all bolted together with stainless ateel
bolts. We took it to Buffalo and had it gold-snodized. That made
it quite bright gold. Wwhen we brought it home 1 wasn't too happy
with it, It wasn't too shiny. Johnson was needling me a little

bit and he says,"why the hell don't you get gold leaf on it? You
got money enough to buy gold leaf for it." I says,"Well I don't
know about that." So I asked Jerim Clapper. Clapper and I bought
the metal and the gold leaf for the weather vane. We had other
help: Don Ross furnished the pipe, Eob Erown furnished the bearings.
I guess that was the only ones that put in money. It cost right
around §300,00, The gold leaf cost about $116.00. Avis and I

put that on, right on the dining room table. It locks pretty good.
It was ten years in the making before we got it up there. I hear
they are going to light it up at night| They are getting spot-
lights on it. 1f that shines on it at night it'11 look nice up
there. I'11 tell you another story about the Court House. My
father was on jury sixty years ego, in the fall of the year and it
come on A Saturday night to adjourn court. The judge whamed his
gavel down and he says,'"Court adjourned 'til tomorrow morning,

ten o'clock." Dad was in the jury box and he went right over to
the judge and he says,"Judge, your Honor," he says;"I gotta be
excused tomorrow morning." The Judge says,"what do you mean 'be
excused'?" He says,"What are you going to do, pull beans or cut
corn?" The old man says,"No I'm not going to pull beans or cut
curn, but it's the first dsy of pheasant season and Sanford Church
(who was an sttorney right there in the group) and I have always
gone pheasant hunting the first morning of pheasant hunting and
we'lre not going to be put off!" The Judge whamed his gavel down:
1-2-311 He says,"Court's adjourned "til Monday morning. I'm going
with yal" (lseughs). See? Tell the truth!
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You were telling me earlier sbout your mother pulling mustard?

It was the 11th of June and she wes pulling mustard that morning,
out west of the house. She decided she'd better come to the house
because she was going to have a baby. She got up to the rail fence
and could hardly get over the fence; she was so damned bigl 1
weighed 12 pounds! Yeah, a big baby wes & good thing to have. Pretty
near done the old lady in. She didn't have any more.

Well, you're not big now Cary. You've never been really large, have
you?

Noj; her family, the Walkers, most of them was small boned.

You were instrumental in organizing the Cobblestone Society and
you have been very active in the Masons, and you've been active in
the Child Welfare.

Well, not too active in Child Welfare. I think I was the President
or Vice~-President for 5-6 years. I used to go to the meetings.

It was a good thing.You see, I've been a member of the Bogue Eoard
for probably 25 or 30 years. I was the Associate Director for
several years. When Judge Frances Sturges went off, they put me

in to take his place. The trustees manage this estate of Virgil
EBogue {Hnma_f9EmQ§PaQ§EEEmph}1grqp_in Orleans County). We give

the interest money to worthy children., Pearl Eddy in Medina, she
does the ground work. Olga Hinkley used to do ground work for

these school councelors, and recommend these children. They get
about $300.00. It's a gift, an out-right gift, and you know there's
very few of them that write back and say,"I'm going back to school.
Thank you very much for the donation." Albert Hubbard wrote a
dictionary a long time ago. My mother had one of them and I don't
know where the duce it went to. but I wished I had it! His def-
inition for gratitude is"the sense of appreciation of a favor

about to be received." You know how true that is!

Well, sometimes it takes years before you can realise the gratitude.
The other day they had the list of who they are: there's L-5 from
Kendall and L-5 from Holley and Albion and Medina and Lyndonville,
and no children that I know were on there., They get $150.00 along
in September and another $150.00 in February. Well $300.00 will

buy you food for quite a few days, or a few books, or wash a few
clothes, or help if you are crimped for money, 1 would think|
You've been very active in the Masons.

I was Master in 1938. I joined the Masons in 1924. I've been &
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Mason for 54 years. I was District Deputy in 1958 and '59 and it
was quite an experience. A lot of people have got religion or bias
against f'raternal organizations but the Masons do an awful lot of
good in the state of New York, They have this Masonic Home in Utica
and they are trying to raise this next two years, I think, seven
million dollars to expand their Home and to bring it up to more
modern. The state clamps down on all these nursging homes, you
know, to come up to the state's standards. We're going to do it!
We do a lot of good. People in this Masonic Home are very happy.

I went down there when I got my warrent in 1958, and they had a
concert in the gymnasium there., At the time there was only about
12 or 14 youngsters at this Masonic Home. Some of these kids was
in college.,

Is the Masonic Home for young people?

foung people and old people. They are mostly old people now, but
they still teke youngsters there. I think they are orphans. It was
8 nice concert. Two of these kids had come back from college to

be in this concert, 'cause they could play. There was a girl in
this concert that sang, and her name was Maureen or Josephine
O'Hare. That's a long way from any Masonic name! That!s pretty
near Irish! A red-headed Irish gal! After the concert everybody
was around Raymond G. Ellis (a Past Grand Master), there in the
group. They was all milling around there and this girl come running
out to him and threw her arms around him just like father and
daughter. Well you know, here was an orphan running up to the
Grand Master, like your own kids. Well you know, that kinds wound
one on me and I've never forgotten it! They do an awful lot of
good. And the damned Masons, they keep all their light under a
bushel basket! All these things that they find out about geria-
trickas and gerentology and neurology and all this stuff, itt's all
funneled to Cornell and Syracuse and New York University. These
other laboratories that are doing this, all this stuff is... they
are giving it to 'em and they are doing a great job down thers!
You mean the Masons?

The Masons are doing it, They are contributing money to this ex-
perimental laboratory that they've got in Utica. In June 1958,

H. Lloyd Jones who was then the Grand Master of the atate of New
York, dedicated this lsboratory. Governor Averill Harriman was

there and took part in this ceremony; also Arthur Levitt who was
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the S5tate comptoller, It was the first time that I had the chance
to meet a Governor and a Comptoller of the State first-handed. I
had a nice talk with Gov. Averill Harriman and he wanted to Le
remembered to seversl of his Democrat friends in Albion. kspecially
Eernard Ryan, who was then Chief-Justice of the Court of Clsaims,
When the Grand Master was here in May 1978 and laid the corner-
stone under the Print Shop of the Cobblestone Complex (in Childs),
I made a gavel for William R. Punt, that he used in the ceremony
that day. I had a nice letter later, thanking me for that gavel.
My father planted the tree (from which the gavel was made) 92 years
ago, It was Black Walnut wood and that was from my own property.
Dad planted that tree right north of the stone house in 1886, 1
had the tree cut down becsause we was afraid it was going to blow
down, about 1968.
You make guite a few things from wood, Cary.
I make tables and cutting boards and anything out of nice wood;
walnut or cherry.
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The above interview was taped, transcribed, edited and typed by
Helen M. McAlllister, Medina, New York.
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' VIRGIL BOGUE 1851-1922 ' +
t  Born and brought up in Elba, N.Y., Virgil Bogue was one seven children
'E in a family with a Quaker background. He was educated in the Elba |
Schools, Cary Collegiate Seminary and LeRoy Academy. He and his five |
brothers all became nurserymen. In 1875 Virgil seitled in Albion with his

wife Alice Mclntire Bogue. In 1917 he authored and published a book |
entitled ‘'The Science of Fruit Growing Based on Nature's Laws"'. It was 1
highly commended by Luther Burbank to whom he sent a copy. Many an 1
Orleans County Orchard was propagated and grafted by him during his |

forty-seven years as a horticulturalist.

S

 children. 'As a result, the Yirgil Bogue Home for Dependent Children was
incorporated with a governing board of trustees. It was to provide for
Orleans County children between the ages of four and twelve who were
‘orphans, or whose parents could not support them.

*On November 1, 1923, a year after his death the orphanage opened in the
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matrons resigned. The home then closed for a short time but reopened
until 1949 when the interest from endowment funds was not enough to
meet rising costs. Also, changing laws regarding the placement of children

: Fund. In 1963 the corporate name was changed to the Virgil Bugue Fund
b for Dependent Children and the income was sent thereafter in quarterly

payments to the Child Welfare Association. Thus to aqme extent Mr

ng-p,g,a,_jlesuu to. help children is still being fulfilled. et
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Alice his wife, died in 1911, He then made plans for the disposition of his
estate. The Bogue's were childless but both had a deep interest in

Bogue residence located on East Avenue at Clarendon Street. Mrs. Mattie 1
Howard was matron and Mrs. Ada Dawson, assistant. The nomber of |
children varied from ten to fourteen each year until 1946 when both |

 affected and necessitated its closing. Eventually the Board of ‘Trustees |
| decided to sell the Bogue Home property and add the proceeds to the Trust
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Cary Lattin, recorded by Clifford Wise, Nov. 6, 1968 telling of
the Lattin residence, home and items of interest found in his home.

This is a suppliment for the OCHA, Oral History papers.
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I am very happz Mr, Wise, that you wanted to come down here and talk
to the "Squire" as I am known in Gaines Basin. I was appointed the

County Historian a little over ten years ago and it has been a very

rewarding experience.

This farm was taken up by Brigadier Bullard in 1812 from the Holland
Land Co, The first house that was built on this farm waas a log house
that stood approximately where the astone house now stands. The next
house that was built here was bullt for Brigadier's mother and it is
that little red building out there and used by my father and grand-
father for a shop. It stood about 20 feet east of where your car
atands, I presume right after the canal went through in 1823 or '24
this land, being fertile, Mr. Bullard probably made considerable money
from the sale of wheat and other farm produce and was probably a fairly
prosperous men and in order to show hia affluence and dignity, he
decided to build a cobblestone house,

It was conatructed by Cyrus Wetherell, a stone mason that lived at
Gaines, It was built from 184l to 1Hué or 1847. When 1 waa a boy,
John Bullard who was the son of Brigadier, was down on his luck and
was awarded a counting. He used to come back to this neighborhood
aummers and atay with the various families he knew when he was a boy.
He uped to stay with my father and mother; he used to stay at Cliff's
and he stayed at Lewls's, and different friends around the village of
Gaines. He used to tell me about helping te pick up the cobblestones
along the Ridge and along the shore of Lake Ontaric. My mother-in-law
used to laugh about 1t because she thought he wasn't ambitious enough
to help pick up cobblestones, but he evidently helped to pick up
cobblestones and he was 1l or 15 years old when he helped his father
pick up these stones. He died in 1929 when he was 85 years old. I
didn't go to the funeral but my father did., We umed a short pencil
and arithmetic, and we think the house waa built sbout 18l)i=5-6=T7.

When BErigadier died in the stone house, my father was probably 12 or 14
years old. My grandmother who lived down the road a 1little bit, came

up to stay with Erigadier the first night after he died. They didn't
have morticians as they do now-a-cays, and they used to wet clothes

and put on the face and hands and chest so that the blood didn't settle
thers and didn't get dark s lot quicker. My father came up here to
stay with my grandmother that night and in the middle of the night,
when she was putting wet clothes on his forshead, my father who had
been wakened out of a sound sleep by his mother, was lackadaisically
holding the lamp, about half asleep. He carelessly tipped the lamp a
little bit and the chimney went on the floor and smashed! That woke
him up real quick, and he got a good bawling out for not being on his
toea and helping with what he was supposed to do.

After my grandmother died, down the rosd at the north farm, my grandfather
bought thia farm about 1855, I think, end moved up here with his four
daughters and one son. That was when this farm changed from the Bullard
family to the Lattin family.
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My grandfether operated the farm until he died in 1901, and sold the
farm a year before he died to my father. He operated this farm and the
north farm, and I atarted with my Dad on the farm in 1917. My father
was not in too good health, and I operated the farm gradually and have
operated the farm for 35 or L0 years. My father died in 1947. How-
ever, the last ten yemrs on the farm he didn't do too much. Once in
awhile he would drive the horses, but he wasz not too rugged. I farmed
until 1959 when I put this land intc the Soil Bank. It was President
Kisenhower's ldea and altho I don't know as I believe in it wholeheartedly,
I have enjoyed it for the past ten yeers and it has built up the ferti-
lity of the soil becsuss all this grass and weeds have gone back on

the farm and built up the fertility, and when this land is plowed up,
somebody is going to get some good crops from this lend. It will be
almost as good as virgin soil. In the Soil Bank, all this land has been
mowed esch year and this grass has gone back into the ground and made
humus by rotting intec the ground.

When Avis Wilson and I were married in 1932, that was just about the
low part of the Depression. We went down to New Englend on our honey-
moon, and when we came back the last part of October or November, we
decided to build a little house., We built the little house that you
see over there, on a shoe-string. It is 27 by 20 Feet. .n 1924 my
father and [ had cut a large guantity of hemlock lumber from the Coon
woods, northwest of Kuckville; 5 logs it consisted of. They were
drawn to a swamill on the Hidge Road in 192 and there were 7,500 feet
of hemlock lumber that were piled up west of the barn from 1924 to
1932, We started building that house on a sghoe-string and lived in

it for a couple years, downstmirs, and no wall was plastered upstairs.
It was gradually plastered upstairs, and it was plumbed and is a cozy,
anug, compacht, 1little house. Our boy was born over there; we were very
happy there, When my father died in 1947, snd when three yeara later
my mother died in 1950, we were hounded by all kinds of people who
wanted to rent the {(cobble-) stone house,

A friend of ours, Allsn Byrt, whom we thought a great desl of and loved
very dearly and who had been a schocl companion of mine in high school
and through the years was a very good friend and a connoisaeur of
entigues extrsordinary, was out hsre. He really got after me and sald,
"Go shesd and fix up the stone house. It will be charming end it will
be begutiful and you'll have a wonderful home." Hla influence, probably
more than anything else, made us decide that we should come over here
and overhaul this cobblestone houss.

After my mother died, we locked the door. We kept the clocks wound
all that summer. That fall we started to overhaul and get ready to
have an auction. There were meny things we hated to dispoae of but
we didn't have room to absorb all the things that were in this house
and all the things that we had acoumulated., We had an suction in
June ;951, and got three carpenters in here and started to overhsul
this housse.

This room you are in was my mother's dining room. The room over to
the south was her pantry. We removed the partition eand made one large
reom. This is our family room, The fireplace that you =see burning
before you, appears to bs an old one, There's an old crane in it

and a caat iron kettle; it ia a hestalator but it's from the back

and are not visible; they come out from the back, The heatalator
fireplace is much more efficient than the regular fireplace. The
mantle 18 a very old mantle., It csmefirom the County House Road, west
of the Arnold Urepory home, and was= given 5o ua by Mra. Arnold Hoot.
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It is a very pretty fireplace and was probably built about the same
time that this house was built. Where you aee our garage, was my
motherts summer kitchen. We added mbout seven feet more on the old
kitchen, and that makes a good garege. The kitchen was all planned
by Avis,

The old elock that you see on the mantle I acquired at Clure White's
auction in 1924, I gave it to my mother and she used it as a bedroom
clock from 1924 until she died in 1950. The clock was somewhat worn
and I had two or three fellows tinker with it, but couldn't seem to
make it run; so we had an electric movement put in this old eclock.

Il dimcovered, written on the back of 1t said, "This clock was purchased
from an agent March 2, 1636 and sét running on the Mansion House bar";
and tells who wound the cloeck until 191l. The Manaion House was & very
besutiful building three stories high, with Doric colurms on the northe
west corner at Gaines. It was destroyed by fire in 184li. The clock
gpparently was rescued., That is an historic piece of furniture to have
in the home. The old gun that you see on the wall was one that my
great grandfather got from somebody up around Geines Basin. My Dad
used %o hunt with it. Those two tables are maple, cut out of a neigh-
bor's woods 25 or 30 years sgo. That desk, which I mede, is from the
same maple tree. When we moved over here we had to have a little

desk for farm accounts. We didn't have anything appropriate, so I
decided to make a little desk, and these two tables work very well,

The o0ld drum was in Avis' family and it was owned by her great, pgreat
grandfather, and was probably used in the Civil War. The date in the
drum is 182}, It was made in Connecticut. Do you know how to tell
the date of a drum? Well, you look in a hols in the side of the drum.
On the opposite side there will be a little label and sticker telling
the date of manufacture and who did the manufecturing.

This pleture of the rabbit that hangs up here, the dead rabbit or
game, was painted by Peter B, West. He was a local artist, born in
England; I think London, in the late 1830%'a. He studied art in London.
He ceme to America when he was 25 or 30 years old. He lived east of
Albleon on the Claron Street Romd. He ralased Scotch Collie dogs,
South-down-sheep, and Jersey cattle. He brought some of the first
Jeragey cattle to this area. He was an artiast of considerable talent
and for the paet 8lx or seven years, whenever I get the chancs to get
any of Mr., West's paintings, I am most happy to get hold of them!

At one time he painted all the circus wagons for F. T. Barnum, and he
was very good,

This kitchen was all plenned and laid out by Avis. She worked many
hours and many days before she decided exactly what she wented in here.
Jou notice that the sink is in en island. There are six or seven
openings in this room, so there wasn't too much space for a kitchen
gink end it works out very well. People can pass through the kitchen
without getting in her way, and it works very well. The lumber you
gee in 1ta natural color, came from the barn, My father and grand=
Tather were always garnishing lumber and ateshing it away for future
use. These pine boards that you see, which are about an inch and an
eighth thick, were given to my Dad when he was married in 189, by
my grandfather. They were given to my father for a wegon box. They
were 16 feet long and about 10 inches wide, of clear pine. They came
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from Michigen on & raft on the canal. He set them up in the horse barn
and they were there for about 60 years when I decided it was time to
use the pine boards for cupboard doors, George Down, who had a cabinet
maker's shop south of Albion, did the mill work on theae doors for us.
He said they were the nicest pine that he ever ran through his planer.
The rest of the lumber that you see here is native; the ash that holds
up this isiand are two inch ash plank native in the Town of Gaines.

The long doors are, belleve it or not,are elm, are very pretty wood.
You wouldn't believe it could be made into furniture but it makes a
very pretty and makes a good door. The other boards are ones that we
“ound around the house. The counter over here is made of cherry and
meple and is from some of the wood that I had cut. I wasn't enough of
a cabinet maker because I didn't have the tocls, so George Dawn made
the cutting block., 1t is two inches thick and about three and a half
feet long, and probably 2l or 25 inches wide. It's a very good cutting
block to do anything around the kitchen. The old rolling pin is cherry
and pine and was made for aome of Avis' great aunts. Her husband was
the Superintendent of the County Home in Genesee County over 100 yeers
ago., Some of the inmates made that old rolling pin (it looks like a
atick of candy) for her great aunt. Avis'! mother brought it down here
when she saw the stripped cutting board. She thought we were kind of
tricky in making the cutting board so that we would have a claim on
the relling pin. This little drop-leaf tmble is solid mahogany and
was made from the old piano in the Phipps Union Seminary. I found the
plano up on the Ridge about }0 years ago. Another boy found it, but
all he wanted was the legs. The pianc was in terrible shape and it
couldn't be restored for playing purposes. It had been in & barmn

and the water had leaked down on it. 8o he had the legs and I had

the top part of the plano. This board that you see is the two top
boards in the piano and I made this drop-leaf table and it workas

out very well. Most of the things end gadgets that you see have been
family pieces.

The silhouette has been in the family since it was cut in 1810. The
two lower plctures are my great, great grandfather and great, great
grandmother. The children above were aunts and uncles., Down through
the family that went, through Dr. Frenk Lattin's family at Galnes.

I always admired it when I went down to szee cousin Frank. About two
Years ago, Virginia Lattin Morrison brought it up here and gave it to
our boy, Bill. It was a very gracioua thing for her to do. I asked
her in all sincerity why she wanted to give it out of her own family
where they have two boys and a daughter., 5She said that they had no
sentiment for it at all. Their name wasn't Lattin and they didn't
care anything about it. It is quite unusual te have ailhouettea of
your great, great grandfather cut in 1810.

Many oftthese other gadgets hanging up in here were in the family.

You seldom find burl bowls with a handle. You find burl bowls and they
are getting %o be a real rerity. One was sold down at the Cobbleatone
auction thia fall for $85.00 | It was about 1l inches in diameter.

My father collected burl bowls as a hobby or because he liked the things.
We have the eleven that he collected. I think he collected nine or ten,
and since I have been going around I have collected a couple. But

burl bowlas are very hard tc come by at the present time. The mulberry
dishes thet you see on the shelf were in my grandfather's family. He
bought them from Sinclair's on the canal bank. At one time, there were
pPlace settings for 22 people. When my grandfather died, he willed them
0 my aunt, /mna Cliff., About 50 years agc she divided the set up,
with her three slatera and my father, My father put lLis awaey in the
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cupboard so they didn't get too badly broken or chipped. The rest of
the dishes are pretty well scattered to the four winds. In the last

20 years, whenever we would get a chance, have been collecting Mulberry
dishes. Avis has now place settings for eight. We can always use sugar
bowls, platters, vegetable dishes and tureens, and they are quite zcarce.
A lot of this was used on the canal trade. They were made in lngland;
they are iron-stone and were shipped by Packet Hoat. You find them
along the canal towns in New York State. These Mulberry dishes are of
black-blue color. They are not too pretty, but at the same time are
very unigue. They were made in England and the pattern we have 1s
called Cypress, end they were made by Davenport. That other big platter
was in the Lattin family down at Poughlteepsie and was given to us by
Ellen Marshall about 15 years ago. That ls also the iron-stone pattern
but not the same one we like to collect.

The rooster that you see over there was done by our boy when he was in
high school. He was a freshman or sophmore. He made that mosaic out
of colored corn that we raised here in the garden., It waa taken to
the Rocheater show about seven yeara ago. It didn't win a prize but
there was considerable comment about it in Hochester, It waa uped
on the Democrat and Chronicls Supplement newspaper one Sunday. 1

like it very much. I thought it was quite a rooster.

We are not exactly trivet collectors, I guess we do have 10 or 15 and
whenever we find one in the rubbish or in junk shops if it is not too
expensive, we try to make a deal for it. It is sort of pretty and there
are thousands of patterns of trivets. Many people are collectors of
trivets, but we like them. If you want to grab something to put under
a hot dish, it is always ready.

I can throw in a couple of canal stories that come to my mind. About
90 years ago the canal broker just west of Gaines Basin, on the 6th of
June about b o'clock in the morning, and the farm right north of us
where David Bullard lives. He was out in his pig-pen feeding his pigs
fairly early in the morning - he and his dsughter - when the cansl
broke! A part of the bank went right out with a great blg gush. It
came Iin a little brook right back of the houses between here and our
barn. Ag he was In the pig pen, the first thing he knew he was sur-
rounded by water and in a matter of seconds, he was water-borne,

Mr. Bullard and his daughter were going down the stream with the pig-
pen| They went down across the Bullard ferm, acrose our north farm,
and across the Gaines Basin Road, over into the farm that ia now occupied
by Jimmie Navarro. There was a big, flat rock about five or six acres.
The water had a chance to go around this and eddy around the lot in a
big whirlpoci. As the pig-pen came over near the house, there were
geveral people there, They called to Bullard and his daughter to jump
out as they coaated around the shore. The girl jumped out, up to her
waist, and they pulled her ashore. He was a good sailor and stuck to
his ship, going down enother half mile, snd lodged in a big tree where
Tracey Sanford livea, where the brook croasses the Galnea Road the
gecond time. He was rescued there.

Another canal story that was told to me and my mother by Mr. Amos

Cliff who lived over on the Cliff farm. They came here when the Bul-
larda did, sbout 1510 or 1512, When they were enlarging the canal about
1850 west of Geines Basin (by the way, Gaines Basin is the point far-
thest point north on the Erie Canal). There wers a lot of Irishmen
living in shenties or shacks on the cansl bank. One night Mr, Cliff,
when ne was a hoy about 15 or 16 yeara old, when he went up in his
ragture to find hls cows %e bring them homa fop milking, the CoWs were
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he pasture. 1t was with considerable effort that he found his
g:ﬁuointthapwouda and brought them home and went back to the pasture
to see how they got out., Up near the canal, several of the top rails
were gone off the fence, so he had to go the next morning and split
some more rails and repair the fence. In four or five days after that,
the cows were out the second time. He didn't have to be too stupid to
know that from the Irishmen's shenties someone was using the top rails
for firewood. So that night, Mr., CLiff went up to the fence with an
augur and some gunpowder. He bored in on the ends of several rails
and daubed it over with mud. In about three mornings, the griddles of
the stove went up through the roof; and he lost no more railas from
the fencel Today the Supreme Court wouldn't condone anything like
that, but taking the law into your own hands then gave you a little
aemblance of law and order.

We use this room for a dining room. We don't use it too often, but

we use it somewhat. The two tables that you see before you - this
before you at the right, was made by my great, great grandfather who
was a cabinet-maker at Poughkeepsie. "The other table that matches it
in length, breadth and height came from the Mathers family. They were
old timers in the village of Gaines. The sideboard on the other side
of the room waa bought by my great grandfather on William Street

in New York City about 1800, Its Hepptheweite sideboard and in excellent
condition. The handles and pulla on the drawers have the esgle and

the 131 stars are are glgned "H.J." We have learned from sntique mag-
azines that during the Hevolution there was a brass maker or metal
malcer by the name of Henry Johnson, was one who made these handles

or pulls, This sideboard was brought up the canal by my great grand-
father in 1833, and sat in the Lattin homestead. After he died,

Uncle Holmes ascquired the sideboard and my grandfather, who was a
sentimentalist so to speak aimilar to the way 1 am, traded with his
brother, and gave his brother a cow for the sideboard. My grandmother,
viho was an Anderson and a little more frugal moneywise than the Lattins,
didn't enjoy the sidebosard too much and it set in the woodshed for a
number of years. In 1901 a cousin of ours who was an antique dealer
in Poughkeepaie, offered my father a thousand dollars for it and any
modern sideboard he wanted to pick out of his store! My father didn't
see any reason why he should sell 1it, so he enjoyed it in his life-
time., I am enjoying it now and we hope that our son will enjoy 1iy.

My son will be the &th generation of the Lattins to own it, There is a
similer one at Williamsburg, and quite a zimilar one in Mount Vernon.
There is a lot of work and a lot of inlay in that sideboard. There

are a lot of peoples who don't see anything, and they don't realize

what 1t is.

The portraits that you aee above the aideboard are the Lattin girls,

my grandfather's cousina. The small portraits were twins: one was
Ymma and one was Jane Lattin., The one in the larger one is Ellen.

She married John L. Marshell. These pictures were given to me in 1920
and I liked them then. Now today they are antique collector's items.
Tws or three from Cooperstown have seen them and they suggest that we
might have them down in Cooperstown. I like them here in the Lattin
homestsad. When the Mona Lisa was brought from France, John F. Kennedy
spoke about the "Mona Liser". How do you like hia accent? The Mona
Lisa is painted on tulip wood. These portralts are painted on tulip

wood, so instead of having one Mona Lisa, we have three! They are quite
vrimitive.
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The glesss canes that you see hanging up here my father brought back
from the World's Fair in 1894. It is amazing to me that it never has
been broken. I don't know why for we used to have them in the dining
room hanging over the mirror. If there is any youngster around here
that looks kind of wild, [ put it away because you wouldn't have to
drop it only once, beceuse it is a glass cane,

We also like some modern things that we really cennot afford to have.
You notice this pair of Steuben candlesticks., 1 was fascinated when

I saw them making candlesticks and goblets over there at Corning. We
found out that we had some friends who had s daughter whose husband
worked at Corning. 1 had a weather vans, an old horse westher vane,
that we didn?'t use so we got together about ecandlesticks snd weather
vanes with this boy who worked there could get 33 per cent off, and the
iron horse weather vans, we mede a trade so that the csndle sticks
were not nearly as expensive as they would have been if we had bought
them in a New York store, or in Corning,

Years sgo thia was the parlor in the house, snd that end over there
was the parlor bedroom. When my father and mother came here to live,
they used this room as a bedroom. There was sn alcove back there that
my mother used as a dressing room, with a doorway into it about six
feet wide. We took out the partition and we use this room as g living
room as it is bright and chesrful, on the south side of the house. I
know when my Aunt Vine Kirby, after we had overhauled the house, said,
"I don't like red paper", There was quite & little red paper in the
house. We maid,"We don't care whether you like red paper or not! We
didn't paper it for you." We papered it for ouraslves, and she didn't
get much satisfaction. We like red paper.

The clock you see at the west end of the room was in Avia! femily.

Lt was sold out of the family 35 or LO yeara ago, and we got track

of 1t. The woman who had it didn't use it. It didn't work and there
was quite a bit of & seroll with it broken at the top. It is an Eli
Taay Fatent. It is not a terry clock but looks just like one of his
clocks. T did a lot of work in repairing the clock and we had it overe
hauled and we enjoy it very much. The shelf that it sets on was in

my mother's family. 'That is a mahogany shelfl and a very pretty one.
1t was made with a Jig-saw and makes a good shelf for the clock,

These other pieces in here: the davenport is really modern. If we

want something comfortable to sit on, or we can gleep on if we have
an overflow of houmse guests. The chair over there and this one here
were Lattin pleces that belonged in my great grandfather's family.

There were origineslly six of them, but they got scatterad. We have
two and are very fortunate.

You notice that there is no television that is visible. We never had

a television and we didn't think we could afford a television. How-

ever, a friend of mine that was very wealthy, decided that we should
have a television. He said,"Ir you don't go and buy one, I'11l bring

one down and have it inatalled for you". So we didn't want a t.v.,

80 We concealed it back of those cupboards. If we see something that

we think we would enjoy, we open the cupboard doors and there is the t.v.

These paintings: that one of the boy is a family piece. He was a son
of John L, Marshall and Ellen Lattin., He accidently shot himself when
he was 13 years old. He was the same generation as my father. The
two children right back of you, we hought those in Lockport from some

A

eatate thal was belng settleé up. They are of a boy snd a girl. We
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liked the colors and they are nice portraits of children. The portrait
over there is of Rev. Francis Dunham., DBy the way, he waa my godfather.
That picture was painted of him when he went to DeVeaux Military School
near Niagara Falls, He was in a uniform and was probably 15 or 16 years
old. Wwhen Bill's friends come in here, the younger jet-set, they laugh
gbout it because his hair wes long, way down over his ears, as the hoys
wear their hair now, and almost down to his shouldera. That picture

was tossed out of the parish house, down in the basement with a lot of
rubbish. We discovered it and thought we would bring it home and put

it in a more proper place to set. This portrait over here is a portrait
of Asher Torrence. He was a postmaster in Lockport, one of the first

and one of the first masters of the 0.G.T. Lockport Lodge.Lockport
Lodge was one of the few Lodges in western New York that survived the
Morgan eplsode. I used to go up to Aunt Georgie Folgers and admire
thia picture. However, she decided to see fit that I shouldn't have 1it.
She gave it to Lockport Lodge when she died. Nobody in Lockport Lodge
now-a-days would give a "tinker's darn" for it, so 1 commenced to
inquire around the Past-maaters, and the two women in Lockport that are
very much interested in the Kastern Star, and through Clarence Lewia!'
influence, they decided that the place for the picture was back in

the family realm. So I was very happy to get the portrait of Asher
Torrence back! He was my great, great step-grandfather and although

I have none of his blood in my veina, I have always admired the plcture
and I have always thought a great deal of Aunt Georgile.

These rugs were made by Avis and her aunt, Hattie Kilner, and made
entirely of wool., They are good for wear and they will wear for years.
Avis is not too happy with this floor. It was lald about 30 years ago.
My mother had it put down in her bedroom. The old floor was wide
bagswood boards and there were cracks in them. You will notice when

we go upstaira thsat there are cracks in the basswood floors, but we
wigh that we had the basawood floors back. It would be much more appro-
priate than this hard oalt floor. Sometime we'll get it carpeted or

put an old floor over this floor.

These two pieces of scrimshaw were in the Harland family; that was my
mother's name. When my grandmother Harland died, my aunt Sath Hyde
inherited these scrimshaw pieces in the division. They are whales!
teeth, carved by sailora. Jacob and Naomi (or Ruth) thay are biblical
characters, and 1 they were historical charscters that do with the sea,
they would be worth a lot more. Scrimshaw ia hard to come by now, and
you seldom find it as far away from the ocean as we are, I don't know
how the Harlands came by them. Thease were given back to uas by Mary
Hyde 3ingle about six or saven yeara ago. 1 thought that was very
nice, that she wanted uas to have these piecea of scrimshaw. The other
day there was a catalogue of Chriastmas gifts came here from somewhere
glong the coast, and I noticed that thers was a scrimshaw in this
catalogue. 'There was one piece around three or four, maybe five inches
high that cost about $60.00. So you see it 18 quite expensive, but I
suppose it took quite a lot of time to cut them. 1 suppose the sailors
had quite a lot of time to cut them, and I imagine whala's teeth were

a lot more plentiful 125 years ago than they are at the present time.

The 1ittle tilt-top table at the left of the sofa was made by my great,
great grandfather who was a cabinet maker. That was given to us by

our cousin Alice Dale about 30 years ago when she moved into a smaller
apartment. It waa in astorage a few years ago when she wrote to us to
come to Rochester as she had a table for us., It is & very nice drop-
loaf %able. It is solid mohagany, This tilt-top table iz maple stalned

to look Like mohapany and that is upuzsual because it hasa 2 crow'a nesat
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on the top of a pedestal. That tilts and slso swings (tilt-top and
awing-top).

This mercury barometer that you see here is a modern barometer, Years
ago I used to gell chickens and eggs to Misa Lola Burell. She had &
nice old mercury barometer that was on her porch for years. I always
admired it. One day when I went in with my eggs and chickens, I said,
"What has happened to your old barometer?" "Oh", she said,"I gave that
to the Taylor Instrument Company in Hochester., They were making a
collection, and they gave me this new barometer." 1 always used to
look at it when I went in there. It had never been set snd I told her
one day that I would come in with a pair of pliers and set it for her,
and adjust the mercury. I never got around to do it. Anyhow, Miss
Burrell died and I still tock egga mnd chickenas to the house there
because Charlotte Stevenson was there keeping the house, She was
working for Mrs. Burrell's estate. I said to her one day,"What is

ﬁoing to happen to the new barometer?” "I don't know", she said,
None of Misas Burrell's things can be sold. Would Jyou like it?"
I seid,"I'd 1ike it very much!"™ "Well", she said, "I will see Mr. Mac-

Gregor”, Mr. and Mrs. MacGragor were executor's of the estate. One
Sundey morning In church Charlotte said to me,"You're going to get the
barometer. Mr. MacCGregor wants you to have it." 1 didn't waste any
time. 1 went up te Mr. MacGregors. On the back of it was written
whose it was and how 1 come by it. You see, I'm a sentimentalist

and I like these things., It is a good barometer., I check it almost
any night. One time it got down ea far ms that, in 1947. I thought
the top was going to pull off. One time it got up as high as that,
about thirty and a half!

Now we are up at the head of the stairs. You will notice this old
grandfather clock. That was in Avis's family and was once owned by
Oliver Wyman. All of the Wyman's were very clever workmen, They were
good craf'tamen and we think that he brought thies from Connecticut or
Massachusetts when he came to this country about 1812 or 1813. Maybe
ne brought just the works, and the case could have been made later.

We don't know. It was given to Bill about 16 years sgo., The works
needed overhauling. Bert Chapman, who was the trouble-shooter for IEM,
took the works and bored out the old bearings, put in ivery bearinga
and it keeps perfect time. It strikes on the hour and runs about 25
houra. If you go to bed real early and wind it, and do not wind it
the next night until two or three o'clock, it will run down., We enjoy
it. We do not have anyplace downstairs for it and we put it up here.
It is screwed to the wall so if youngsters come here, they can't grab
hold of it and knock it down.

These are pictures of some of my ancesters: the Anderson coat of arms
(the pictures in the hall upstairs); my grandmother Lattin was an
Anderson. (By the way, she went to Phipps Union Seminary in Albion,
My grandmother Harland went to Phippa Union Seminary. Avis's grand-
mother went to Fhipps Union Seminary)., This is the old guy in the
family who was a cabinet maker. He was born in 1776 and died in 1858,
This is Sarah Allen, hia wife, and they were Revolutionary people,

This Joseph Lattin and his wife, Mary Wright, This is the Lattin
coat of arma.

This is Bill's room. He has been a glass collector for the last 15
or 16 years and has collected a lot of good glass. It is mostly out

of here now because he has an apartment in Medina.
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This bed is cherry end was made on the Lattin farm before 1858 by
Nathaniel Lattin when he was up in this county working. ... The posts
are of s0lid cherry. The head boards are white wood.

The end (of the room) we partitioned off so that is a clothes closet
out of Bill's room because there are very few clothes closets up here.

Here is a guest room. This bed is bueckhorn maple. There you will
notice another painting by Peter bh. West. That 1 got in the junk

yard a few years ago for {5.001 1 was very happy when 1 got & picture
like that for $5.00 in & junk yard., If it had stayed there very much
longer, it would probably have been toased out or burned up.

The sampler that you see at the head of the bed was painted by one of
these great, great grandmothers: not painted, it was needle-point, or
sampler. The alphabet and models girls used to make in those days.
The date is marked 182l.

These floors asre basswood., They were probsbly cut off the farm and are
about 12 inches wide, - the boards. We scraped them down with a power
sander and then we put Fabulon on.

This picture that you ases here, BEill found in a house on Clinton Street.
We were told we could go in and help ourselves to anything that was

left. We found this old picture. It didn't look very good to me.

"No", he said; "1 think it's good!" So he brought it home. He waas looking
at 8 magaezine one time, called Hobbies, or Spinning Wheel. In Spinning
Wheel was this seme picture and 1L was c&lleg “ﬂHE%a House Orchids"

and was painted by Caroline 5. Harrison, the wife of Benjamin Harrison
when he was president and she was the firat lady. This is a repro-
duction.

This Winsor chair that you see here, was given to me by my aunt,
Ueorgia Folger of Lockport whom 1 spoke of previously. That was her
great grandmother's., That chalr is probably a little over 200 years
old and, as 1 said, was owned by her great grandmother, Cynthis Cowens.

A bedroom, quite s large room, probably 20 by 18, maybe bigger than
that. It takes an awful lot of wallpaper to cover the sides when you
get going in there. It ia slmost half the upstairs in the house.
These boards, you notice, are basswood, probably cut off the woods.

The chest is another of the Natheniel Lattin pieces, snd that was
shipped up bg packet boat to Joseph Lattin, I don't know when, some-
time after 1833. It is painted on the back: "to J. A, Lattin, Packet
Boat via Howard and Thuraton, Alblon, Orleans County". I prize that
very highly. It Is a very nice cherry chest, dove-tmiled and as
tight as it was the day he made it.

That painting there is Avis's great grandmother, Harriet Nichols, who
was married to Andrew Wilson. It ias pastel and looks like a photo=-
graph.

The highboy is a piece we picked up some years ago. That chalr was
in my mother's family. It was her grandmother's snd is quite a small
chair. 3he must have been quite a small woman to have used such a
small chair. Anyone with a big butt fills 1t up pretty quick. This

is one that I got about 0 years ago over at an suction at Scottaville.
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Here is a chest made by my great, great grandfather and is the only
thing he signed., This was made in 1819 in Poughkeepsie. His initial
is on the bottom of it, also the names of his children. The 1834 date
I don't know. This J. A. Lattin was my great grandfather, this was
Deborah, this was William, and this was Jane Maria who died when she
was 21 years old. She married somebody by the name of Culver. This
aunt Georgie of Lockport gave that to me about four years ago. Here
is a sample nput here of this big chest; the same kind of mouldings

and about the same- this drawer here. That's a nice little chest.
That little square table, 1 made about L0 years ago, out of walnut.
The top board ceme from Dye and Fox's Clothing Store. Millard Simpson
gave me this piece of walnut. The legs came from a tree that Fay
Hollenbeck had cut down on the Hidge.

That is & Currier and Ives of the presidents up to the time of Abra-
ham Lincoln. I presume gomeone who collected Currier and Ives prints
would like that. It goes from George Washington to 1865. There's

one that was in the family, some of the Lattins down at Poughkeepsie.

This bed, Aunt Deborah had that, and it is about 135 to 140 years
old, That is a ring. 1t was given back to us last year.

This was 8 clothes closet here. We took about 20 inches off to make
a clothes cloast for our guest room, then we cut through this part-
{tion so that we would have a bathroom. 3o there was a clothes
closet 20 feet long. We didn't need that much clothes closet, and
with no place to put a bathroom, so we cut through here and when we
gut through here, we ran intc a beam. I didn't know whether to cut
it off or not. I talked to carpenters. They said it would probably
be alright to eut Lt off. BSo we put another header to the beam up
there, end another header down here, and drove that to the blacksmith
at Childs to get a heavy angle iron a half inch thick. We used some
bit long lag bolts, and so we lagged them all in so that the hpuse
wouldn't fall apart. (Back in the kitchen or family room).

I thought I was all through, but I started "yacking" again! You don't
realize if you had a pocket full of money and a big fat checkbook,

how long it would take two people to acqulre the amount of things

that ere in this houae because [ know where everyone of them came
from, practically. The cupboards are full, and what do they amount

to if they are stashed away. but if the time ever comea that we

have to sell them, we will sell them. bBut they should be preserved
becauss there are a lot of things here that if they are gone, they

are gone forever; and I hope that my son, and he is commencing to
realize thet they are something in antiques. He was always interested
in art and modern, and now he is commencing to realize that there is
gomething that the old things mean something after all.

Now I want to ahow you some of these burl bowlsa. This one was my
great, great grandmother's and probably one of the first sewing
machines that came into Orleans County. It's not a toy. It sewed
in chain stiteh and you can pull it all out and it all unravels.

This burl bowl is one that Dr. Mark Hedgea gave my dad probably

45 years ago. It's made out of solid black ash knot and somebody

hed drawn the crank case oil out of a Model T Ford and set it under =a
car with all this crank case oil in it until it penetrated into the
bowl. Dr. Mark Hedges worked on it to get this o0il out, and my father
worked on it., It set out in the shop, under the bedroom, for ten
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years. Finally I went at it, after I was married, and I scraped all
with a pen knife snd got all the oil out of the wood., We use it for
a saled bowl. One just a little bigger than that sold at the Cobble-
stone auction for $05.00! This one, was in the house here.l gave it
to Will DeCarmo, down at Poughkeepsie. When he died, Elle gave it
back to us and I was awful glad that she did. There is one made by
my great, great grandfather, the cabinet maker. That I know, because
when Aunt Lime settled up and sold her house, 1 found it with the
contents in the cellar and she gave it to me. It's not perfect

but it's made the way the knot grew evidently. It's sort of bean
shaped.,

This one was my bath tub when I was a baby. It will hold & couple
bushels. That iz a burl bowl; the biggest one that I have ever seenl!
This is another. These were in the family. Here's one that Avis gave
me for a Christmasa present about ten years ago. That's & nice little
chopping bowl. Those arse really rare and valuable,

I don't know what this was made for, probably a cookie, It im a
wooden jog, but look at the turning. Isn't that a nice piece of
woodowrk? It was probably made 50 years ago, or more. Look at the
turning. How would you get into there to turn that out? Here is
the 1id that goes with it, 'They are getting rare.

THE END

The above is a copy made from the transcript located in the Orleans
County Historian's office, in the Court House, Albion, New York.

Mr. Clifford Wise made the original tape recording of Mr, Cary Lattin.
Mra. Helen M. McAllister, Medina, New York typed this additional

material to accompany her interview with Mr. Lattin for the Orleans
County Historical Association, Oral History Project.
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Lattin 1

For the Orleans County Historical Association, July
24, 1979, Helen Meciallister of Medina, New vork is interviewing
Mr. Cary Lattin.

Mr. Lattin lives with his wife, Avis, in a beautiful
cobblestone house on the GCaines Basin Road near Albion, New
York.

This interview concerns the Cobblestone Society.

L T'11 try and tell a little bit about the history of

the Cobhblestone Society, why it was formed and how it

was formed,
pbced ot dabd

puring the year 1959, when Gaines had the Sesquicentennial
celebration at Gaines, there was going to he a one day
celebration or fair. It toock about two months to get

ready for this Sesquicentennial celebration. We wanted
to visit the points of interest around the town and we
wanted to visit the Cobblestone Cchurch at Childs. We
went to the Universalist Board in Albion and asked

them if they would open the church for one day so we
could see the interior of this beautiful old Cobblestone
Church.

word came

Two or three of us went down to the church and
' round, and we went through the building.
The plaster was bad in the ceiling and it was in kind

of rough shape. There were many windows that were

broken and the Universallst
be risky to have a bunch of
the church. They might jar
somebody's glasses | 5o we

to wisit.

Centennial, people commenced to ask:

to happen to the old church

noard decided that it would
children running around in
some plaster and break
Aidn't have the Church

uring the centennial, and after the

"“what's golng

2%  When you tell a damn
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vankee that he can't have something, hell 1s out for
dinner=time. "Then thiey wantb ot ! They learned that

in Prohibition. when they told the American people
they couldn't have booge, thoy gat hayze, One wWay or
anothar. }&JNHUpLﬁ in the neighborhood were concerned.
Pegple in the district were concerned, and in the
town. FPeople out in the provinces were concerned.
"What's going to bappen to this old beaut iful church 2
and people would say: "What's going to happen to e Y
we had no oroanization formed thal could maintain the
Buildings or had no socteby formed that could operate
the thing like it Ls today.

. : _— L
suring the winter of 1955 and ©0, Bob Frasch taught

school in Holley, history and English, and he formed

a Yorker Club in the Holley High school. ¢ne of the

projects was to find the cobhblestone houses in the
Town of Murray and aet all the information on these
14 cobblestone houses in Murray. ‘There wasn't too
much information available. e came into the office

whenn 1 was Uounty llistorian and asked wme what | ke

about a vobblestone housea, I saiid: "1 have lived 1in
one about 60 years. rnd by way of talking about
cobblestone buildings, there's a beautiful church
building in Childs." Iie said: "lek's see it."

so we proceeded to go down to Childs, stopping by
Hamer Brown's house to get the key To the church.
Wwhen he saw the intericr of this old ‘mhbhlestone

L * =
Chureh, he really tlipped ! He 2a |_ci,'fh1.s bhuilding

b ) )
should be =ave !f | said: "ves, ' know Lt shoul a be
gavod but how are you goinyg Lo save U we have 1o
propanmy zation whabsaevery Lo Ao B . Wer Bave 00 monay.

We have 1o orcanl zat 1on, an I How are 'f""‘L| (_.;C]'i.ng Lo

form an organization as quilck as Lhat
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Wwall, people commenced to get concerned. ‘tThe
of the Town of Albien, katharine Billings,

Historian
whose ancestors had been attendants of this church

and the liistorian of the Yown of Uaines, Howarr Vratt,

was interested. And that's the way it hung fire. The

next fall, in 1960, Charlie ‘Thompson called me one

morning about six o'clock and said: "3ay, they are
going to sell the Cobblestone schoolhouse.  We better
do something about it." 1 liked that - - - "We hetter
do something about it." So 1 went down to see Charlie
and he said all the district schools have been
centralized in the five schools in COrleans County:
¥endall, tiolley, Albion, Medina, and Lyndonville.

He zays: "You know they are going to sell this building

next week Tuesday at Albion tUentral School. They are

golng to dispose of 1t.' "well," 1 said, "charlie,
Wwill wou go up to the meot ing ¢ You can vote." e
said: "Yes." "well you go up Lo the meeting and vole

against selling it: to hold us on the table for six
months until we can do something 2" rrd he =aid: "Sure.”
tharlie stuttered a little bit. 50 1 took it upon
myself to go anid see about 12 or 14 people in the
immediate district, Gaines # 5, to sce if they would

go to the Albion Central sehoal mesting and see 1if we
coildntt save this - — - stall this off; for four or
five or six months until we could get an oroganizat Lon.
Bob Frasch and I went to the meeting antd asked if we
couldn't bBe heard, and we both talked ahout holding this
up until an organization could be formed. Cur main

purpose wag to save the Church. This was the main

b ildding. e Cobbhiestane 55l .! .L|| Aane t'L_li- '_".”Jk')!!'ﬁll.-".‘.'-"t':}rif"__
Chuarah. T nj theom a pieeh and they List ernecs ii]__t{_i_‘-l
Fal oo vas there. e had gone to achool at this

ol bealon eliool . i hvack attended bhe abbhl eslone

“hurel when they had their moctings there, during Ll
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summer, twice cach summer. (e had a very fine
vocabulary of four-letter-words. lle got up and
said: "1 make a blankety-hlank motion that this
blankety-blank schoolhouse be left on the table for
six months, and if you blankety-blank guys can't get
organized in that time, you don't deserve the damn
school '™ rnd, they voted unanimously to hold the
sale up for six months. They tossed us a torch and
then we had to do something. So we got an ad-hoc-
committee, so to speak. We had no money. We had no
funds. We had nothing ! And on this, we wrote a
letter, Bob Frasch, it was in his writing., And we
got Katharine Billings, the Albion lHistorian, and
Howard Pratt, who was Gaines Town Historian, and

Morris Wilson, who liverd next door to the Church and

one or two others. Bob Frasch and the committee and
myself signed this letter. We sent this letter out

te 100 people. We went through the telephone directory
and looked in there and saw names of people we thought
would be interssted in saving their heritage. Well,

the meeting was called abt three o'clock on a cold

sunday afternoon in Gctober 1260,

vou know there were 65 people showed up at that meeting,
and we had a slate of officers drawn up. We'd asked
all these people if they'd either be a director or an
officer, and we told them what we wanted to do at this
meeting. 'There was about 60 people signed up to be
members. Some of them paid a 42,00 dues right then.
sp we had the thing started. We agreed to meet at the

village 1nn,in about two wecks and get an organization

mest LT .

We had a dinner meeting over at the Village Inn and
we hard the west room pretty well filled up. There
were probably 89 to 100 peapl e there who were interested

in saving this building. tarl Schmidi was there. lle
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was also at the first meeting. tie had written a book
about cobblestone buildings in 1944. ‘The little books
that he wrote in 1944 are collector's items today !

o we had a slate of officers drawn up. We had a cross
section of our people: we had an attorney, we had
twoe architects, we had school teachers, we had farmers,
and we had business-men on this thing. We had a cross
section of what was going on. With the help of the
attorney and 3ob Frasch, they came up with a set of
by-laws and a constitution. We asked for a charter
from the New York State Department of Hducation. 2nd
we were wise. That was our attorney's advice. "Get

this charter from the 5tate Department of Education if

vou possibly can." 5o we had the application for a
charter and it was signed by, T think, the directors
and the officers. By the end of the six months we had
a temporary charter. 5o when the school-house came up
for sale, the next aApril, that was in 1961, we had
$129.00 in our fat little hands to pay for the school-
house ! That's what we had to pay for deeds and
search and the necessary proper papers that has to be
signed to transfer the property. 5o we owned the

building.

We were in business. (Carl Schmidt came up with the

idea that we would have a tour that spring, 1961,

And, we held a Cobblestone Tour and made money. It
was held right around this vicinity. 'hat fall we
had an auction in the school-house to make money,
but our main concern was to save the church. We
had made some overtures to the Universalist Board

—

in #lbion, and they were in our corner, so to speak.

Wwe kept trying. John Brush, who was a director on
our society, was in the hierarchy of the Universalist

state Convention, and his influence didn't hurt a bit !
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e was a trustee of St. Lawrence University. He had
endowed St, Lawrence University wvery well. It took
about two or three years before the final papers came
through. After the papers were signed by the
Universalist sState Convention and the Universalists
over here had relinguished what they had in the
building, it seems that they sat for six months in

Judge Serve's office. 1 saw him one day in the

courthouse hall and 1 said: "¥ou know, Judge, why
can't you hurry that up a little bit ? We want to
et title to that building and we want to do things "
He says: "You know, Cary, don't try to coerce a
supreme Court Judge. 1 wouldn't want to put you in
jail.”

ile said, what 7

mon't coerce, influence, a Judge unduly.

So in about three years we got clear title to the
Cobhlestone Church in Childs. We were in business
real good. ‘The Cobblestone Society put a roof on
that building that cost 52200 before we owned it.
That's how much we thought of the building. So we

had two buildings.

Wwell, our angel, John Hrush, is a good friend of

mine. I've known him as long as 1've known anybody
around Albion liigh School, and he is a fairly wealthy
man. 1 said: “You know one day that we should restore
the tower." There was a tower on that church when it
was first built. 'The tower was removed in 1918 because
it was getting deteriorated. 'The timbers were rotten.
50, they decided, the Iniversalist Society, to take

the tower off. rnd he =said: "1 think so too, and I
will pay for it." 3So John and 1 went Lo see Hobert

snell who was the only contractor close by: and John

and Hobart made a deal, and the btower was restored.

T ecan't tell you what year it was. FPerhaps in '63
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or 'e4. And John Brush paid for it himself. T
remember when he was up there: the terrace in front
of the churech was in bad shape when we bought the
church., They were all covered over with woodbine,
Nobordy knew there was a terrace there, just thought
there were some steps going up there. So one day

when there were some of the directors deown there,

we decided to pull up some of the woodbine, and
discovered there was a terrace ! 1t looked pretty
crummy. OUne day John says: "I think we better do
some repalr on the front of the church., T will repair
the terrace and furnish some landscaping." S50 we went

to see "Pat" (Pasquale) Dilaura, who was the last of

the Crleans County Quarry-men. He was as fine a
gentleman as 1T ever hoped to know.

"Pat" Dilaura was Mr. Stone Duarry, Medina Sandstone,

He was 80 years old at the time, and he said he would
take upon the job of restoring the terrace. He still
had some influence at the quarries in Hulberton, and he
went down there with some of his trucks and got a couple
of loads of stone to relay this terrace. With his

stonecutter helper, Sandy Malone, "Pat" Dilaura relaid

the stone. Frankie Swierczynski let us have four or

five of his colored boys over there to do the grub
work. They had to dig out the trench and do some of
the heavy lifting for "Pat". 'There was "Pat" Dilaura
and Sandy Malone that made the Lerrace and that was
laid in 1966, Tt looked pretiy nice. 'These shrubs
that were replanted, came from a nursery up in Newfane:!
and that first summer they were planted there. They
guaranteed these shrubs to live. 1 said: "That awful
nice, to guarantee these shrubs ! However, he says:
You got to water them this summer.™ I watered them

27 times that summer. I got water for free from Hank

Hadzinski's spigot,
Lt bl
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vou know, neighbors are better than money sometimes.
when llank Radzinski was going to get his license for

a Liquor Store, right next to the church, he was having
problems.  The Secretary of the Orleans County Lagquor
Authority came to me and said: "lHow many times are you
going to have service in your church 2% It wasn't my
church and T wasn't having the service, hut that's what
he said. 1 said: "We don't know whether we would have
any service." "You know" he said, "Hank Ls going to
have problems getting a liquor store next to a church.”
I said: "if you talk to any Cobblestoner and they try
to ro any one thing to stop his liquor store, clobber
them " I told Howard Pratt, and 1 told a couple of
others: "1f they wanted to have a liquor store there,
he is going to get it in spite of hell. Let's have his
good will." 5o we had his good will. When we wanted
water, we had thousands and thousands of gallons of waterf
I talked to ilank about it and he says: "I know it. I
appreciate what you guys didn't do." 5o we were in

business.

about that time or a little later, Nellie Vagg, who

lived kitty-corner across the street, had a Blacksmith's

shop. Tt was her husband's Ilacksmith Shop. The original

shop, which was a brick shop, was bullt in 1830, and that
burned up in the fall of 1921. The farmers needed a
Rlacksmith in 1921 to repair their tools and shoe thelr
horses and do the necessary things around the farm that
had to be done. So the farmers pitched in and helped
Joe build a nlacksmith shop, and he was off and running !

He operated that shop until in the 1950s.

Joe Vagag and Hellie Vagg were solid citizens. Hellie
vagg worked in the shop with Joe. She would run the
bellows and help build the fire when they were setting

wagon tires. She was the only woman 1 ever knew that
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always wore black stockings. bven when she got to be
an old lady and was through with the Blacksmith's Shop.
she always wore black stockings because black stockings
in a placksmith shop was more appropriate than colored
stockings, They were solid citizens. &And, I mean
solid e¢itizens ! He earned all his money with an

anvil and a hammer. e sent two kids to college.

The girl went to Elmira and graduated there and the
boy went to the University of lwchester and graduated
there. 2nd he got to be the llight Fditor of the

Democrat and Chronicle (newspaper). So they didn't

do too bad. HNellie Vagg decided to give the Blacksmith
Shop to the Cobblestone Society. Tt was to be ours at
the end of five years, or at her death, whichever came
last, and she lived longer than five years so after

she died, we got clear title to the shop. We put a
roof on the Hlacksmith Shop about the time that we
acquired it. It may have been a little before; but
about that time, S0 now we had three buildings. We

had the church, the school and the BBlacksmith Shop.

Bill Lattin was hired, or asked, to be curator, January
o seacncs

1, 18971,

Bill Lattin. (€. Wilson Lattin, son of Cary and Avis

Lattin)
He has the sharpest pair of eyes of anybody that 1

have ever known. Ie says: "ihverybody looks but very
few people see.” and it's true, He Xnows more about
the cemeteries and headstones in Orleans County than
all the undertakers and grave diggers put together.

Oor if there is anything unusual about a building, he

knows where it is and what's it all about.

ile was coming through East Center Street i1 Medina
ane day and he noticed this little building up at

Maine's Lumber Company. 't stood there and 1t was

always boarded up. 5o wheels ot Lo winding arounrd

wiay know, it would be a

in hies mind, and he saids
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nice building for a Print shop." So he went down

to see krling Maine one day and Erling says: "What

can 1 do for you, Bill 7" Ille gays: "Do you own that
building in the lumber yard in Medina near your lumber
yard 7" He says: "I do. what about it 2" Bill says:
"1 want it." He says: "you want it 2" e says:
"ves, | want it for the Cobblestone Society for a

= 'L i .
Print Shop. Maine thought a minute or two and then

said: "Ckay, T'll go along with you." Bill had a
building dropped in his lap. Well the next thing was,
how are you going to move it ¢ So he was talking with

nr. Houek who was the superintendent of Schools in

Albion, and about this time they was starting this

CETA program. [B}ill wanted to talk to Houck ahbout

how we could get help: could we get CETA workers,

and one thing and another, and how are you going to
move the building 7 "Well," Bill says: "you know,
Keeler could probably move that if he would." And

he says: "You know Jim Keeler. Why don't you ask

him 2" So he called Jim Keeler right away to see if
he'd move this building, 12 by 20 with a little shed
on one end of it. Keeler took a loock at it and he
said he would move it. However, the roof would have
to come off. So they went up to Medina with their
tools and equipment and CETA workers, and we took
off the roof. 'hat way it would go under the

telephone and utilities lines across the road. 5o

reeler moverd the building from Medina to a site in

there on the same property that Nellie Vagg had
given us. & triangular piece ol ground on the
south side of the brook, with room enough for this
Print Shop. The building was moved in there and
was seb on pliers. rhat summer the CETA workers put

the roof on, painted the building, built the chimney
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and bat L the wall undder b, Ly Loy CETPA wWwOrkers.

These kids never had a trowel in their hands before,
They did a remarkable Johb. They had to get from the
Blacksmith Shop over to the vrint shop and they had

to build a hridge over the brook. CETA workers built

this bridge over the brook by design and plans Bill
(Lattin) made. That is the way to get over there.

It is a nice bridge.

Bill was talking to Dave Stevenson at one time. He

had bheon Past Master of Renovation lLodge, and he was
coming up as the Mistrict Deputy. He casually saya
to Dave: "You know, we ought to have a corner stone
laying for the Print shop." Dave says: "That's a

great idea." In order to lay a corner stone by the

Masonie Fraternity you have to have the Grand Master

from New York to do it. S0 he contacted wWilliam R.

Funt, who was orand Master, and he was tickled to
death to come up in this area and lay the corner
stone ! There hadn't been a corner-stone-laying

in trleans County for probably 40 or 50 years. Well,

I won't say that. A Masonic service. The corner

stone over at the Infirmary was laid in 1960. So

the Grand Master and the Grand Lodge came up here

and laid the corner stone under the Print Shop. The
stone they used had been taken out of the old Infirmary
which was puilt in 1878, just 100 years prior. When
they tore the building down T was up there and they
were dismantleing the building and 1 told Wally

Faorder, who was custodian at the Court llouse; [

sayes "For God's salos, o't el Dhesn buary Lhat

stone up in Lhe rubbish.  That should be saved.”

It said "1878" and on the other end of the stone

was the Masonic sgquare and compass. le sair: We

don't want it around the Courthouse. 1If you got
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room Lthere we'll bring it over to the farm." 5o he
brought it owver here and we used it as a step to get
in the corn house for about 18 years. 5o we had the
stone that was just 100 years old when the stone was
laid there. It was probably about the same age as

the building. S0 the printing material that Harold

Hill's father had given us was moved over there, and
we had a nice little print shop. Sid kEddy from the
Eddy Printing Company in Albion, MNew York, gave us
some other type of things that was used in the printing
business. 'They were old. Preople might say: "why save
a Print Shop ?" Printer's ink will sell anything.
And, if it wasn't for printing, where would the Holy
Bible be today 7 1It's the best selling book at the
present time. The Bible has got more volumes sold
than any other book that comes out. It always has
been., In my lifetime there are two types of

printing that have become obsolete: the hand set

and the linotype. ''hey don't do that any more in

print shops. Linotyping is out. It's all electronics.
and, there will be something faster than that in a few
vears. 5o there's two types of printing in my life
time that have become ohbselete. These old presses
we have in the Print shop is the old hand set type.

S0 much for the Printing Office,.

In the Town of kKendall, there was a church that was

built down there in Kendall by the Universalists in
1855, and it was used by the Universalists from 1855
for about 25 or 30 years. 'I'he concregation was kind
of falling apart. ‘They just couldn't operate. So
they sold it to the Lutherans. e Lutherans took

agver this old church, Greek {evival, and they used

it until they outyrew the church and they built a

new church. 'rhen it was used for a Town Hall and a
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school, when they was building the school down at
Kendall., aAnd in 1977 and '78, the building was just
standing there and the people wvas wondering what they
could do with it. Well, some ol the people wanted Lo
form a society, a social club. They wanted to do it
but they couldn't get together. The girl who is

Historian in the Town of Kendall, bDelores Sedore,

- — and T think she said something to Bill, "Have

you got any idea what we can do with that building 2"
Wwell, ©ill said, right off the top of his head. "Why
don't you give it to the Cobblestone Society 7" Well
she didn't know whether they wanted Lo do that or not.
That gawve her something to think about ! Bill went
down to see the Town Hoard, or Mike Paduchak, who was
supervisor, and he said: "Well, we'll think about 1t."
well they thought about it and they said they'd give
it to the Cobblestone Society but they had to have it
moved off of there by the lst of June. Illere was a
building, 30 by 44, The firemen was itching to set
fire to it for a practice job. [t was a damn shame
to burn up a nice building like that ! So Bill went
back to Houck to see if he could get CETA workers.
aAnd, they were allowed three CETA workers. And, Bill
thought he could get the building off of there. They
had about, T don't know, about four weeks to take this

building apart. They had to letter and number the

boards and take it apart with these three green CETA
workers. »And Bill, who is not a carpenter: but he
knew how to drive a nail anid saw a board off pretty
square. #nd they had - - - when they got the building

taken down and got the - - - Pete Roth, who was our

neighbor at Childs, with a big flat hed trailer, drew

it up. And Bob Hrown with another truck. They had,

I think, two or three days leeway on their deadline,

thee 12t of June. go then we had a building but where
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are we going to put it ¢ S0 in the town, when we
were having our Board Meeting, the early part of
april and may that year and talking about this
ailding: we had no place to put it. Somebody

suggested that maybe drs. Neva Murray would give

us a little ground, or we could buy a little piece

of ground next to the Print Shop. BSo Mrs. Veeder

Howard, who was on Lhe Cobblestone lloard, and Bill
Lattin went to see Mrs. Murray and asked her if we
could beg, buy, borrow or steal some land to put a
church on. She thought about it for a few minutes

and they had guite a discussion. 1 don't know whether
they went to see her twice or not. But anyhow she said
she would talk with her children, and if it was
agrecable with them, she would give us this land.

So she gave us the land adjacent to the Print Shop,

out to the road, # 98, and up to where this brook

runs. So we have a brook on two sides of ocur property,

south of it and east of it.

Then we came up with the idea that sometime it's

going to be named Cobblestone lirook. But that's

ot to go to the Federal Government to name a stream.

Tt has no name at the present time. Assemblyman Steve

Hawlex told me: "I think you have to go to the Federal
GCovernment to get this." 5o mayvhe 1f we get Congress-

man John LaFalece and some of these others, we'll have

a ribbon cutting down at the brook, naming the brook.

So the boys and Bill went to work on this church. It
sat on 12 or 14 piers and they started putting this
building back together. Well, the building wasn't

in as good shave as we had anticipated., Many of the
roof boards had to be replaced and some of the siding

had to be replaced. S0 it rost us wore than we had
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anticipated, to put this building back together.

The deadline on the CuTPR workers was the middle of
Novemner, that fall in 1978. They got the south part
of the roof on in fairly warm weather in November.
and, it started to turn cold. ‘They had a little
problem putting on the tar paper on the north hip

of the roof. ‘The sun didn't shine on that so good
and it was hard to work it. cut they had it on and
had the building closed up by the middle of November.
f think it was guite a job for three greenhorns and
one kid put that building back together.

This year #ill has CETA workers to help. They are
painting and finishing the floor and fixing up the
inside of the building. It is a beautiful room. 1It's
painted kind of yellow and it's all fixed up nice,
Tt's going to he a beautiful room to use for a

Parmer's lall, to put onr obsolekte farm equipment in.

1t's going to be called Parmer's Hall. S0 now we have

gix large huildings.

Three years ago Bill discovered the old privy at the

nacon Homestead in Five Corners. It was attached to
the house. It was a Victorian style of architecture.
He finally found out who owned it and he went to see

the owner who was Melva Ferris, and she wanted $250.

for the building. That's the backhouse from Pive
Corners.

A privy and a backhouse are the same ¥

The same thing.

we didn't hesitate too mach. it was a hell of a
price to pay For a backhouse: buat alt the same time
it was very unigue ! We weren'l certain, buk we

think that perhaps somebody like Caledonia=pMumford

had an idea, and she knew she could get this $250.
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S0 we had to pay her 5250.00. nd in about two weeks

time, one of our members, MNettie Ferris, Gave us a

check for S5250.00. So mayhe lettie knew what she was
spending the money Eor. Pete Roth picked 1t up on a
fork lift and took it down back of the Ward House.
[t's an Eastlake design and it's a wvery elaborate
privy. The paneling in the inside is all in the
diagonals. [t has a pretty little cupulo on it, a
ventilator, and the windows slide back in the walls.

3o that's back of the Ward House.

The next year we had the chance to get the privy at

Gaines from Mrs. Hockenberry. ‘'They were going to sell

the place and they wanlod to gqive the Cobblestone
Society something. 5o they decided they would give

them this privy. It was made to set back of the first

bank in COrleans County, 'The Farmer's Hank of COrleans.

It's a seven holer, a big backhouse ! 1t is federally

designed; probably one of the oldest buildings in the
County. (5..&2.. NoTE - f’a.%l" l6 7&[5 :

Then later that year, tlaine Wilson of Kuckville had

just an ordinary privy down there, and she gave 1t to
the Cobblestone Society. That was moved in there on a
triuck and set back of the FPrint sShop. 1In the case of

an emergency, it is functional. That one they use.

This summer a lady came to Bill and said: "You know,

I'm sorry you bought that privy from the Five Corners, "
She says: "1've got one that | would like to give to
YO, 1+ was used in the home of Rufus Bullock in

alhion: pulloek's Backhouse." When they put in

plumbing there after the placn was sold out of the
pullork family and the Fanchers bought it, they put
in modern plumbing in 2lbion arcund 1910 or '12, they

was putting in sewers then and averybody had to get
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reference is made to a seven hole privy which

was used for the first bank in Urleans County and
was probably one of the first buildings in Orleans

County. At the turn of the centuryjthis old bank

building was used as the parsonage of the Gaines

Congreqgation Church. We moved there in 1904 and

lived in that house until 191%. During that 15
vears 1 have no recollection of other than the

ordinary three holer: two large and one small.

There was only room encugh inside so that the

"aaars and Roebuck" catalogue was in easy reach

of any seat.

luther Burroughs — — ecember 1279
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up and say:
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eurator there, she would let
show them what

different

She had a key to

We asked her al Limes:

we pught to have that building

she said: "1 know you should. |1

it to you)and you can't afford

was going to go to Texas and live with her son.

was about 91 years old.
to go and talk to Mrs. Ward:

and myself.
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af the sons took

later it was transported

a4 wvery unicgue privy

| = and moved up

WEAT

¢ project of our

say when we acquired the Ward

and when we was

i in the Cobhlestone
to turn the lights

¢ house door was

she always would call

"o better come Jdown and shut it up.”

we had a regular
to the church.

Ore
in
was like.

Ehe church

Mre. Ward,

”Tn'i'f_:."ll i i

"You know,

can't afford to give

g buy it." Wwell, she

she

So we had a committee appointed

Nettie Ferris

Finally she decided she would sell us the

iittle House, and we bought 1t in '74. We gave
$16,000.00 for it. And by paying all that money for
the Little fiouse, we had to scrape the bottom of the
barrel of the Cobblestone treasury. That cleaned us
up. ‘''hen she uwanted to sall tho contents of the house,
and there was guite a lot of mi antigues in there,
The son, wWwillis, had ktaken out the hest things, which
wag natural. when we went fdown there that morning to
sea about the sale of the interior, 1 was surprised.
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To me it leoked better than T had thought it would,
s0 we bought the contents for $51,500.00. He said:
"1f you will give 51,500,000 for them, I will give
the Society 55000.00." 1t was some kind of write-off
on his tax business, you know. 5o he paid 5500.00
then, and next year after we had an auction or two,

we had the other $5500.00. George Wollfe, who was

President at the time, was very insistant that we
get this debt paid off. So we had to pay fairly
dear for the house,but it would have been a shame
i1f somebody else had acquired it and had a bad
neighbor there. You see the house and church are
in spitting distance, and it makes a nice office.
There's a nice office in the basement of the house,

and it's a nice little home.,

Tt's two-tenths of a mile down Lo the schoolhouse.
It's all walking distance. Anybody can walk. Yes

sir, we got a nice thing. We got a nice setup.

I took Bill and Avis and Heather over to Mumford {Mm&m)
two or three years ago. I didn't go in because 1
couldn't walk around in there. And when they come

put I said: "Bill, how does it look 2" He says:

“Tt's nice." He says: "Our church is far superior
; PRy,
to theirs.” fined, ﬂooperstownkhaﬁ bheen up here to

see it, the boys from Cooperstown, several of them.

Pere Gulbet came up one day to give us adviece: what

to do and what not to do,., All we have to do to the
church is preserve it. We don't have to restore it,
[t's already just the way it is. 1t was used for

cabbage storage for about 25 vears. Balcolm Brothers

stored cabbage in there. 'The floors have all been

taken out of the basement and we put in 57 tonsg of
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gravel to level it up, and pul a cement tloor in the
basement. 'There waes several of s helped push cement

around and foward Pratt and Curlis Murray ironed the

cement level. 'They leveled it out, i wouldn't take

on that jU!'JJhLIt I helped push cement around,

Then we started the little museam. ‘The first exhibit

we had in there was just Cohbleostone piectures that
I t

had been taken by Gerda PPeterich. 'That was the first

vear's exhibit in there.

what year was it when the Musoum was started in the
sasement of the church, Cary ?

Wwell, maybe '67. T can't tell; '67 or '66. They had
just these panels in there, and these Cobblestone
pictures. Then we had a girl come up from Utica who
was a museum designer, She had i1t designed in a sort
of horseshoe. You came in the west door. That was
the only access to the building. 'he other door had
been nailed up. We operated that way for a couple or
three years. ‘The first year we had that set up,

mleanor Wilder was down there for a while., We hired

her. Pt 1 don't know whether she didn't like it or
she didn't have a way to get back and forth. 5o that
kind of petered out.

what did she do when she was there ?

Sat there and be there for the people to come in. We
had different exhibits in there. »~nd then about 1969

or '70, we hired a fellow by the name of John Lovell,

who was a sturdent out of - i den't know whether it
wan Broekporrt b wWanlbodd & ol Fhere and Tie
wanbed about S1700 for that summer .  John Brash,

our angel, was on the poard and he said: "I will
underwrite it." |le gave the money to hire John

lavell for that summoer. (e drdn't do too mach.
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He sat there and he did some cataloguing. FPeople
would come and he would take the money, and that was
1t

Did you ask for donations, or had you arranged for a
set fee when people came 7

well we got donations of a dollar. If you wanted to
give more than Lhat)we liked it. 350 the next year

I think he wanted a better job and there was some
hassling. Bill said that he would do it. And there
was some hassling on the Hoard ahout Bill deoing it.

I disqualified myself to get out of the meeting. I
said: "I am not going to be here. TIf you are coming
to a tie, then I'm coming back." But Bill was hired,
or he wasn't hired, because they didn't give him
enough for peanuts. 2nd he started there the first
of January 1971, and he's done a damn good jcbf He's
changed it every year. 1Tit's been changed guite a lot.
You have got to have a lot of imagination and a lot
of talent, and a lot of ability to do that.

Do you mean that the museum has been changed 2

It's been changed around. 7Tt's been changed and it's
different: it looks different. FPeople went by as if
there was someone in there a couple of years ago.
Jesus ! In ten years, it's different ! Bill had

the office over there by the west door, and a couple
of years ago he decideéd to have it over at the east
door. ‘'then you can see the ward Ilouse, 1It's right
together. Ile changed it again this year, Changed the
new aoffice space there.

Now you have a gift shop there. Is that run by the

Arts Council 7

Na. 'That's the Cobblestone, Donna wordden, Mayor
of nlbion, takes care of that. Zhe writes the checks
and pays the folks off. There's nice things in there.

i1l said: "“wWhen they started this gift shop, T say

what goes in there. TI'm not going Lo have a lot of
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kid booties and crap." ie said 1t's got to be
something — - good stuff to go into the gift shop.
But Donna iodden takes care of that and does a darn
good job at it. It's been changed around. When we
get the hig things out of the church basement, they
will go over te Farmer's Hall. 'The farm equipment,

we want to get the farm equipment over there.

Me Your rrint Shop is now printing stationery ?
L That's right. Kendall Orlip-wilt is the printer.
He has taken - - whatever you call 1t - - - a

sabbatical leave from teaching school and he's

taking a year off. He's the printer over there.

He prints stationery and different cards and things.
what he can make over there is his. What would we
have to pay scmebody to be in the Print shop 7 You
see, he's happy, and we're happy to have him with us.
He can make a buck on printing this paper, He buys
the paper. It don't cost anything and he buys the ink
and he's just using our pressing room. It's nice to
see people printing these old things by hand. 5o we

are lucky to have him. ie's a good guy.

Anyone that wants to use the church is welcome to

use the church. The church from BDarre Center has

been there. Gaines, West Barre and the Universalist
Cchurech in Albion were there this summer, and St.

Faul's Church from Holley was there last Sunday.

The kpiscopal Churchi they had a picniec out in

the back yard. We are very glad for nther organizations

to use the church.

Mo you also have werddings in the Cobblestone Church.
L ves, we have weddings. We had a wedding there last
week. The 5 rvasoniec lodges have used the church for

nondenominational services. They have breakfast at

the nearby Village Inn with their wives and familles
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and sweethearts. 'They have some very goord speakers
at those meetings. We had Henry I'. Smith, who was

our Congressman. We had Barber Conable and we had a

Supreme Court Judge From Buffalo a couple of years

A0 .

1 like the fall program with the Pumpkin Festiwval.

We have the latriotic Service around July 4th, and

we: have the Lamplight Serviee in Getober. ‘That church

is beautiful when it's lighted by lamps. There are
120 lights in that building.

The organ in that church is qguile beaatiful.

Weell, we had the organ overhauled this last winter,
L,ast summer there was a group of people from Rochester,
and | was talking to the man and he said: "Do you
know anyone that wants to buy an organ " T said:

"Nai " [ said: "what are you, an organ man 7" And

he said: "well, | repalir organs." and 1 said: "You're

just the man 1 want to talk to ! We have an Estes

Organ in the chureh that needs some work on it. Would

you take a look at it 7 Wwhat would you charge us to
do it 2"

That's a little foot pedal organ, isn't it 7

Yes, it is. Well, he took a look at it and he told
me what it would need. 2nd then he said: "I won't
charge you too much.” So we took the organ down to

him last fall and we said we would like it by the

first of May. He put a motor in it so Hernard Lynch,

who is getting weak legs like all the rest of us old

timers, can pump the organ.

the schoolhouse is of great inkberest to a ‘great many

youne ol
llowar:d Frabt wused to hold school down there fLor
voungsbters coming in by buas loads:  Warsaw, ‘Tonawanda,

and Lyndonwviile {: [. lioward FPFratt Interview)

i .ﬂ.-T-ﬂ;E-E‘.c'. NS ary
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e decided albout three years ago that he didn't want
to do it any more., He was 86 or B7 and he didn't

want to do it any more. 2o Janice Barnum Thaine 1is

taking over and she is doing a damn good job. Ehe
was down there last year and had a group from West
seneca. There was about 50, and they were having
lunch up to the village Inn and 1 was invited to
this luncheon. »And there was another group there
from rheektowaga, 1 guess. And, they said they
would be down in three weeks; but they wanted the
same school "marm". That's how much they like her.
she's very popular with any group whether they are

kids or old folks. G&he's good |

Ccary, perhaps this would be a good time for you to
tell us a little about the book of which you are a

part, telling about the hook autograph party that

was held in the =Zchoolhouse. That was a fun thing
7an you tell a little hit about that ?
We got a grant aboutbt elght or ten years ago, from

the New York “tate Council on the pArts, to do some

research on a Cobblestone book. The committee was

Bill sheldon, Bob Thrash, Gerda Peterich and Cary

Lattin. It was given for the sole purpose of
research, all about Cobhblestone houses in Mew York
state:; and we went at it. [+ took a long time. 1

didl a lot of leg work locating these houses all over

Central and Westorn New York. I ot all the information

' eould on these varions houses, in Central and
Western MNew York, and the ones that was too far away,
like two or three housgses 1n albany. [ contacted the
County Historian in those different counties, to get
further information. Finally it came to printing.

It was printed by the Syracuse University Press,
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Gerda Peterich, who had taken these pictures, died
in 1974. Tt was too bad she didn't live long enough
+o aees this book Finished, 1t came off the presses
last ecember and L'm kil of proud to be a damn

small part of it (%w %NVSM)

Hot a small part !

well it was. 1 didn't do any of the writing. 1t's

a pretty nice book and the photographs are excellent.

cary, will you alse tell us about the annual Cobhlestone

tour * 1 think your wife has played a big part T L

wall, she's Jone a little. Wer hatd a tour. Carl

Schmidt was the one who got us on to this tour.

L}

We've hardl an annuwal tour and we've been as far east
as Cayuga Jounty and as far wesh as Miagara County.
This year il was in ponroe County, around Clarkson.
Last year it was in Warsaw (Wyoming County) and we
had the finest houses we ever had on the tour. ot
cobblestones: but beautiful homes. And, it was the
poorest attended, We had a very small crowd. We had
a good crowd of about 500 people on Lhe tour. 5o we
made a little money this year. We made about 51000.

or 41100.00. 1t takes money to make the mare go t

The Cobblestone Society has grown, hasn't it 2
About 30037 not too many people. 1 don't know why
it is: there are very [ew people in and around Medina

that are members. 1 don't know what the rivalry is

betwaen Albion and Medina. Nobody can explain it.
Je have people in Connecticut that are members and
peaple in California. raybe thoy feel sorry for us
and want to aive us a few dellars.

Most of yonr members are frem around this area 2
fes, bhis area. Wwhen the churveh Lower was roestored
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in 1904 or 'od, wo omade provision bo have one of the
louvres that could be removed at the top of the tower,
in ecase we could ever acguire a bell. Jehn Brush,

who was on the hierachy of the liniversalist Society
of the State Convention, found a church that had been
torn down in a town north of Svyvracuse, called Cicero,
He loecated the bell that was in this church. 1T

ino4

borrowed a pick-up truck from "Jinks" Johnson, who

was the Supervisor of the Town of Yates, and we went
to Syracuse one day to get the bell. 2ut when we
got down there, we found the farmer had this bell

ir some remote shed. It was anreeable that we have
the bell., We had to find someborly that would pick
it up and put it on the truck. TL welghed 1590
pounds. We weren't about to pick up three quarter
of a ton of bronze bell ! 5o we found somebody
there that had a fork-=1ift and picked the bell up
and put it on the pick-up truck. We brought it
back, and Ray Severns unloaded it with his tow truck

and set 1t beside the church. It was visible from

the road. In about a week's time Don Smith, who was
'

with the HMNew Verk State Police, a BOI Investigator,
came Lo me one days and he says: "Cary, 1 see you
got an old bell down there, or a new bell, for the
church." lie says: "1 would advise you to move it.
where it sets it's too visible from the road." He
said: “"That bell is valuable. (Laughter) Somebody
will be stealing it." 50 Frankie Swierczynski

moverd 1t around in hack of the church vwhere it was

out of =sight. The bell weighs 1590 pounds. At the
time, the mokal in that lwel] was worth pretbty near a
dollar a powumda e hewd probably 51200.00 worth of

metal in that bell and 1L set back of the church for
two or three years. Finally one day we knew that

Petronio was going by Cchilds with a portable crane
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and Jerim Klapper, who knew Petronio, prevailed on

him to stop and put the bell up in the tower. And

he and i1l yoolston, who had worked around the tower

some, put in some stalrway and put in some more posts
to support the bell. He and Xlapper swung the bell
in, on a chain hoist and put it in the cradle that
had been taken up there to hold the bell. So we
have a Bell that rings. 2and it's pretty nice to
have a bell thers., when you ring it, you can really
hear 1it.

Yes you can. Yes.

W ADDITIONS by CARY LATTTN® -—'@'“- ﬁﬂ'ﬂ\g bdu;,rtew')

muring the Plizzard of '76 or '77 it was pretty rough.
AL my life ' have had a friend who is always pestering
me, all my 1ife, We was friends in District sSchool and

he always had a practical joke. Like putting a live

bull frog in my dinner pailjur Eryving to get a date
with my wife the dav before we were going to he
married. fut during the Blizrzard he was coming
home one night real late. aAbout five o'eclock in
the afternoon he couldn't go any furthert he was
bogged right down. And he could see a dim light

in the shape of a farmhouse. 5o he went to this
ald farmhouse to see if he could get in and get

warm. e knocked on the door and the door opened

up like that and the lady stepped out and said:
What can | do Tor you *® @ says: “fan I come in
and get warm 3"  She says: "You can come in here but

you can't get very warm because the power is off and
the furnace has conked out.” "Well" he saysi

"Ain't you got a stove ¥V "ves, there's a Franklin
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stove in the parlor." &0 he said: "Let's get it
going." And he went out in the woodshed and all he
could find was two or three nld orange crates, some
bushel baskets and some b lavboy magazines. S0 they
started a fire and they kept warm huddled around the
stove. So about 11 o'elock the fuel was gone. He
didn't want to break up llitchoock chairs or nice old
tables so he said: "The best thing for us to do is
get in bed.," 5She says: "My good boy, 1 have never
been to bed with a man in my life." "well" he said:
"vYou better get with it." So about daylight, he
heard the furnace kick in. ey got up and she made
a nice breakfast, ‘Tthey had a nice breakfast: orange
juiee, cotfeo, and bacon and cogsg a nice breakfast.
fnd finally they heard the snow plow go by. He says:
"I guess 1 better be on my way." 2nd he lit a
cigarette and started to go out the door, and she said:
"My good boy, what is your name " He says: "T am
Cary Lattin." (Laughter) He was a loudmouth,and in
a few days it got back to me. 2snd 1 thought, well -
- - that will die down like all his other practical
jokes. But in about a week's time after that, I was

. i3 ) . /
going through the obituaries, and the old gal had died.

s
I'n about three weeks | got a wvory official envelope
from the Surrogate's Office, from Judge oherty. The
next day 1 had the pleasure of writing the following
letter to Joe: "Dear Joe, Thanks for using my name.

’II

She left me the farm. {Lauvghter )

[s that true 7 You rascal.

senior Titizens have it pretty damn good. I got a
raise out here the first of July. cot enough raise
nov bea Ly my wh i skoy. Just like getting 1t Eres
nowardays~ this raise in getting sSocial Security.
verns know 1'we got some friends that have been Senior

Titizens for guite a while. Mey don't need the money
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but they take tt, and Lhey go to Plorida, This last
year Lhoey decided to yo in one car:y double up and go
in one car. 5o they flipped whether to go in the
cadillac or to go in the Conbinental. So they went
in the Continental. Jell the first day they got
along in Pennsylvania and they wanted to see iMamie
Eigenhower's spread,where |xe was there. The next
day they was down in Virginia and they went by a big
fancy motel, ani there was a hio neon sign with a
steer oan it. (n the other suie of the drive-way was

a hing wed loabster sign, And they

knew they could get
surf-and=turf there, so they stopped and went in this
Fancy motel, ‘they went in and had a nice dinner. 2nd
one of the girls was having a hirthday. ‘'They had
champagne and when Lhey went back to the motel nobody
was "feeling any pain'. They was laughing and hawving

a good time and somebody said: "Why don't we switch

partners tonight?" 'They langhed about that, you know.

They thought that was great. 7And about three o'clock
in tho morning, one old guy said to the other old guy:

"1 wonder how the girls are getting along 7" (Laughter)

Mec
L

well, i'!ar.‘y,h thank you very much for this.
Better not show that to |*-':a¢.f
Thank you wvery much tor this fascinating history of the
Tobblestone .'_ir.':f.?i_ra'r;ylan:i kwo of your stories told as only

you can tell them !

Transeribed Ly Luther Buarrougles of Albilon, New Yorks
soveral addibions apud Lok toes by YAy latiin,.

Final t

yoing by Lyshel h Heffman of 1 akeside, New York.
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. Wethinking of
' Ol Orleans
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It was just twenty years ago when Robert Frasch a Social Studies teacher
in Holley walked into the County Historian's office and inquired as to what
might become of the old Cobblestone Universalist Church in Childs. From
that simple inquiry the Cobblestone Society was born. On Oct. 19, 1960 an
organizational meeting was held in the Cobblestone Chuch headed by Cary
H. Lattin and Robert Frasch was elected the Society's first President along
with other officers and directors.

From that time onward there has been an accumulation of artifacts and
buildings coupled with events reminding us of our local history and
cobblestone heritage.

The first event for making money to be applied toward preservation and
restoration, was a tour of cobblestone houses which was held in June of
1961, For each successive year the Cnhhlenmne Society has arranged an
annual tour of homes making this year's tour the 20th. A milestone indeed,
and it is perhaps anticipated with more enthusiasm than any of the

lmdetr's annual events. You won't want to miss the chance this year to
browse back through history in the area of North Greece on Saturday, June
7 from 1-5. Tickets will be on sale at McNall's Furniture Store, 4975 Ridge
Road West beginning at 11 a.m. on the day of the tour.

8 e i R R Y B

!
{
|
|
j
y
{
)
}
{
|
§
§
E
§
|
!
\
\
|
§
|
|
|
{
{
)
y
|
{
)
!

e e B B T e g R g el e e 8 el Bl B Y B e B B A mmn—rlmmh.—---—j



MEDINA JOURNAL-REGISTER
Thursday. Novembear 30, 1978 3

COBBLESTONE AUTHORS--The three authors of ‘‘Cobblestone
Landmarks of New York State,’” which completed its first printing of 2,500
paperbacks and 1,500 hardback editions, were busy signing books at the
Swan Library yesterday. From left are Olaf William Shelgren Jr., of
Buffalo, Cary Lattin of Albion, and Robert W. Frasch. The authors are all
members of the Cobblestone Society. Lattin, one of its founders, is a
retired Orleans County historian. Frasch was the society’s first president
and is director of the School of Science and manager at the Rochester
Museum and Science Center. Shelgren is a past president of the society
and an architect in Buffalo. The book was prepared through a grant from
the New York State Arts Couneil, -{J-R Photo)
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COBBLESTONES AND PUMPKINS FOR GOOD OLD TIMES

On Sunday, October 19 the Cobblestone Society will celebrate its
twentieth anniversary with two different events. Beginning at 2:00 P.M.
until 5:00 P.M., the third Annual Pumpkin Festival will take place on the
museum grounds at Childs along with a pumpkin contest for students
through Junior High age. At 7:30 P.M. the Eighth Annual Lamplight
| Program will take place with Affiliate Artist Barbara Hocker singing.
It was a cold rainy Sunday afternoon on October 23, 1960 when the
| Cobblestone Society was officially organized at the old Universalist Church
! in Childs. Many area residents were concerned as Lo the fate of the
cobblestone church at the Ume, since the Universaliste were desirous of
selling the property. With around sixty people in attendance a slaie of
officers was approved who are shown in the photo above taken on that
occasion, From left to right are: Maurice Wilson, Vice-Pres., Cary H.
Lattin, director; Katharine Billings, Secretary; Robert Frasch, Pres.; J.
Howard Pratt, Director; and Hannah Thompson, Treas. From that concern
for preservation just twoe decades ago the Cobblestone Society has become
widely recognized as an institution symbolizing Orleans County.
Acquisition of the church did not stop there as six historic buildings and
related architecture now make up the Cobblestone Museum Complex.

October is not only the anniversary month for the Cobblestone Society but
also the month in which the Cobblestone Church was dedicated 146 years
ngo. The foundations were dug in April 1834 and the stones used in the
masonery were collected from surrounding fields as pioneer farmers
cleared their land. It was lurgely through the efforts of John Proctor and ot
his own expense, that the church was erected for the First Universalist
Society of Gaines. Chiseled in the marble tablet above the entrance are the
immortal words 'God Is Love'' which capsulized the remson why the
church was conceived and buili.



